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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of 5GS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow and the Standalone Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally
accepted in [ndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have chtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not caver the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors' Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this
regard. ATRAND
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited, on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

5. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financiat statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This respensikility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

6. Inpreparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends te liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so,

7. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
errer and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern hasis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence cobtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the standalene financial statements represent the underlylng transactions and events in a
manner {hat achieves fair presentation. P is el \
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited, on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 {cont’d)

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Other Matter

11. The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the predecessor
auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial
statements vide their audit report dated 09 May 2024,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12. As required by section 197(18) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of section 143{11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

14. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3} of the Act based on our audit, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements;

b) Except for the matters stated in paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11({g) of the Companies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept

by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

—

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act;

f)  The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in,
paragraph 14{(b} above on reporting under section 143(3){b) of the Act and paragraph 14{h){vi) below on reporting
under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B
wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h

—

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in note 38 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending
litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2025;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025,

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the jxvestor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025, N
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited, on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 {cont’d)

iv.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 49(V}(e)
to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 49(V})(f}
to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management representations under sub-
clauses (a) and (b} above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025; and

vi.  As stated in Note 49(V)(q) to the standalone financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1
April 2024, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with, other than the consequential impact of the exceptions given below. Furthermore,
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention in the
accounting software from the date the audit trail was enabled for the accounting software;

a) The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any direct data
changes.

b} The accounting software used for maintenance of payroll related records is operated by a third-party software
service provider. The audit trail (edit log) facility at the application level was enabled and operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, the 'Independent Service Auditor's
Assurance Repart on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness’ (‘'Type 2 report’
issued in accordance with ISAE 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a Service Organisation} does not
have the necessary information on the existence of audit trail feature at the database level and accordingly we
are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to the database of the said software was
enabled and operated throughout the year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Rfyge}/ﬁhtion No.: 001076N/N500013

Manish Agrawal

Partner
Membership No.: 507000

\\j\‘

J

UDIN: 256507 00BEMMKPI9661

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

__Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of $GS

Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

In tarms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets,

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{b) The property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets have been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in Note 3 to the
standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for the following properties:

Figures in Rs. Million

Description of | Gross Held in | Whether Period Reason for not being held in

property carrying | name premoter, held name of company

value of director or
their relative
or employee B
Freehold Land 9.67 | 8GS No 21 years | The title deeds are in the name of
(A-3 Infocity, Tekniks and 3 | SGS Tekniks Private Limited,
Sector 34, Private months erstwhife Company that was
Gurugramy) Limited amalgamated with the Company
as per the order of the Honorable
High Court of Punjab & Haryana
through order dated 15
- September 2012,

Freehold Land 4.07 | 5GS No 18 years | The title deeds are in the name of
{Plot no 88, Tekniks and 3| SGS Tekniks Private Limited,
HPSIDC, Baddi, Private months erstwhile Company that was
Himachal Limited amalgamated with the Company
Pradesh) as per the order of the Honorable
High Court of Punjab & Haryana
through order dated 15
B September 2012. -

(d) The Company has adopted cost mode for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made thereunder.

{ii} {a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, except
for goods-in-transit, In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as
compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 24 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets. The quarterly
returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and
such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of ac:count of the Company for the respective periods,
which were not subject to audit/review. /
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SGS
Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on the standalone financial statemaents for the year ended 31 March 2025
{cont’d}

iii} The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partrerships (LLPs)
or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act, Accordingly,
reporting under ciause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(V) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Act in respect of the praducts of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by
the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

{vil) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no statutory dues referred in
sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except
far the following:

Figures in Rs. million

Name of the | Nature of dues Gross Amount Period to [ Forum where dispute is
statute amount paid which the | pending
under amount

B ) | Protest relates
Income Tax | Deemed dividend 3.01 4,02 | Assessment Assessing Officer
Act, 1961 and other year 2006-07

disallowances
Income Tax | Disallowance - 0.91 0.20 | Assessment Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 under section 14A year 2016-17 Tax (A)

and 80IC
Income Tax | Disallowance 0.92 - | Assessment Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 under section 14A year 2017-18 | Tax (A)

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which
have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts,

(ix) {a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

{b} According te the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the management

of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or goverament or any government authority.

/ "j_-f \-'\'33.1'.',\",'
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of $GS
Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{cont’d)

(¢) In our opinion and accoerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
meney by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation during the current year of the term
loans obtained by the Company during any previous years. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis have, prima facie, not
been utilised for long term purposes.

() In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or o meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

{(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments}, during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully,
partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(>3} (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the
Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company.

(i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by the
Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable.
Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements,
as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

{xiv) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit
system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the provisions of section
138 of the Act.

{b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period under audit.

{(xv}  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingty, reporting under clause 3{xv)
of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. TN
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS
Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{cont’d}

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Crder are not applicable to the Company.

{d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the Company,
the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} does not have any CIC.

(xvii} The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately preceding
financial year,

{xviii) There has heen resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information and
explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our communication
with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the tompany. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
halance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end of
the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi}  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial

statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Re?@kan No.: 001076N/N50G013

Manish Agrawal [
Partner \ i\
Membership No.: 507000 NGEN
UDIN: 25507000BMMKPI9661

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks
Manufacturing Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the
Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private
Limited {'the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {'the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAlI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemail financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and pefform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financiat controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

8. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks
Manufacturing Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(cont'd}

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Re%ﬁon No.: 001076N/N500013

Manish Agrawal [S l
Partner \ %\
Membership No.: 507000
UDIN: 25507000BMMKPI9661 ==

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Standalona Balanca Shest as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in milllon Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

11PTC413733
7 As at As at
Particulars Note | 5y march 2025 31 March 2024
A |Assets
I |Non-current assets
fa’ Propertv. olant and equloment 3 1.345.02 1.272.49
{b) Caoital work-in-oroaress 45{1) 4,89 1.14
(¢l Right-of-use assets 5 199.86 232,95
{dY Goodwill 4 1.051.45 1.051.45
{e} Other intanaible assets 6 8.19 11.98
i1 Financial assets
il Investments 8 121.15 121.15
(i) Other financial assets 9 22.47 21.45
fal Income tax asset (nec} 10 20.79 20.82
(hY Other non-current assets 11 9.95 9.40
Total non-current agsats 2,783.77 2,742.83
1L [Current assets
() Inventories 12 2.900.17 2,878.08
by Financial assets
{i} Investments 13 181.28 204.65
{ily Trade receivables 14 2.571.70 1.429.16
{iihy Cash and cash eauivalents 15 267.08 199.49
{iv} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 .75 3.58
{v) Other financlal assets 17 6.65 3.33
fcl Other current assets 18 267.52 269.83
Total current assets $,197.15 4.0988.12 |
Total asssts e 7,730,95 |
B (Eoulty and liabilities
1 |Eauity
{a! Eogultv share caoital 19 16.13 16.13
(b Other eaulty 20 5.692.15 4
Total eouity 3.708.20 #4.818.861
1I |Liabillties
L |Hon-current labilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(1Y Barrowinas 21 0.08 2.07
fily Lease jlabilities 44 198.23 223.80
{b) Provisions 22 62.87 50.83
{c! Deferred tax liabilities {net} 46.4 15.89 35.70
{d} Other non-current Jiabilities 23 60.40 35.76
Total non-current liabilitias 337.47 348.16
2 |Current liabliities
{a) Financial llabilltes
(i} Borrowinas 24 485.08 746.24
{IN Lease llabilities 44 25.49 24.34
{ili} Trade pavables 25
- Total gutstanding dues of micro and smail enterprises 70.31 54.90
- Total autstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1.956.38 1.507.17
fiv) Other financial liabllities 26 172.47 126.22
{bY Other current llabilities 27 168.08 50.90
{c} Provisions 28 20.42 15.82
{d1 Current tax liabdities {net} 29 35.94 38.59
Taotal currant liabitties 25843k |
Total liabilities 3,272.64 2.912.34 |
Total squity and lisbilitiss
The accompanvina notes are an Intearal part of the standatone financial statements.
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet refesred 1o In our report of even date s
\
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on beh f thi rdjof Directars of
Chartered Accountants SGS Taknile uf; g Priv Limited
Firm Reqistratio . DOLOTGN/NS00013
.’,".l
4 \%;l
|Menish Agrawsl Krighne Kumar Pank
Partner Direchor
Meambership No, 507000 DIN: 00198916 DIN: 001
N d 1!, [{ cAnDA,
— Sandeep Kum
Company Secretary
Membership No. F10151
Plece: Gurugram Ppce: Gurugram
t 09 May 2025 Date : 09 May 2025




$GS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U31501MH2011PTC413733
Year ended Year anded
|Particulars Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
1 |Revenue from operations 30 13.456.75% 11.266.55
2 |Net aain on foreian currency fluctuations 31 15.97 24.32
3 |Other income 32 16.87 20.63
4 |Total Income {1+2+3) | 13,489.59 | 11,311.30
5 |Expanses
{a) Cost of materials consumed 33 10,385.39 8.848.05
{b) Chanaes In inventories of finished aoods and work-in-proaress 34 3.16 {141.75)
(¢} Employee benefits expense 35 536.42 438.48
{d) Finance costs 36 83.03 105.37
{e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 7 175.87 156.48
{f) Other expenses 37 1,143.96 990.64
& |Profit bafore tax (4 - 5) 1.161.76 914.24
7 [Tax expense
- Current tax {including earlier vear taxes} 46.1 289.82 235.54
- Deferred tax credit 46.4 (18.76) (1.94)
Total tax expense 271.06 233.60
Profit after tax {6 - 7) £890.70 680.64
9 |Other comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{iY Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability {4.19 {21.97}
{iiy Income tax expenses relating to the above 1.05 5.53
Total other comprehansive loss, net of tax (3.14) (16.44)
10 |Total comprehensive income for the year {8 + 9) 887.55 664.20
11 |Earninas per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each 45
- Basic and Diluted {In Rs.) 552.27 422.03
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone financial statements.
This Is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandicok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
|Firm Registratio LQ/OUIO?GN/NSOOOIB
Manish Agrawal Krighna Kumar Pant
Partner Director

Membership No. 507000 DIN: 00158916 DIN: 001988390

; =

ekt o 1
Sandeep Kpmar

Company Secretary
Membership No. F10151

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date : 09 May 2025 Date : 09 May 2025




S5GS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limitad

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are In million Tndian rupees unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U31501MH2011PTC413733

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

I. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,161.76 $14.24
Adjustments for:
Depreciation ant amortisation expense 175.87 156.48
Finance costs a3.03 105.37
Dividend income (149 (2.58)
Share based pavment to emplovees 2.11 1.77
Loss on sale of property, plant and eaulpment (net} 0.9 0.05
Galn on fair value of current investments (mutual funds) (13.60}% 9.81)
Allowance for expected credit loss 13.25 30.00
Bad debts written off 5,57 1.25
Liabilities no longer required written back 10,14} {4.85)
Interest incoma 11.58% {1.281
Net {qain)/loss on account of sale of investment 10,061 1.30
Government incenthve {5.53) {2.007
Unrealised forelan exchanoe qain (net] {1,301 {9,200
Ovevating wrofit befors workino canitsl changes 1,418,80 1.180.73
Adjustments for fincrease)/decrease in operating assets:
Inventores [22.09) {651.09)
Trade receivables 1.156.88) 192.65
Other financial assets {4.81) 5.13
Other non current assets {0.807 197
Other current assets 231 30.72
Adtustments for increase/(decrease) in operating Habilities:
Trade pavables 453.42 317.62
Other non current Nabilitles 7.25 0.75
Other current liabllities 117.17 18.35
Cther current Nnancial liabilities 49.20 0.07
Provisions 12.45 16.24)
Cash flow from ooerstions 876.02 1,086.72
Direct taxes pald (net of refunds) {292.40) (231.75)
Nat cash flows from oparating activities 583.62 B854.97 |
11. Cash flow from Investing activities
Capital expenditure towards tangible assets {including capital advances, capital work-in-progress, net of {196.48) (387.84)
capltat creditors and net of govemment grant}
Capital expenditure towards Intanaible assets 15,92} {4.76)
Acaulsitlon of nen-controlling interest of subsidiary . (3.40)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9.16 6.62
Dividend received 1.49 2.59
Proceeds from sale of investment (net} 37.03 0.67
{Increase)/decreasea In Nen marked/marain money deposits (0.3 2.25
Interest received on deposits 1.37 0.12
Neat cash usead In investing activities {153.72} (380.75)
II1. Cash flow from financing activities
Repavment of non-current bomowinags (1.99) r4.101
Repavment of current borrowlnas (net) 1260.16) (201.93)
|Pavment of lease Wabllitles {41.11) 139.61)
Finance costs paid (67,22} [82.35)
Nat cash used In financing activities {370.48) {332,99)
IV. Increass in cash and cash sauivelents (T + IT + III) $9.42 141.23
V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 199.49 51.78
Add: Effect of exchanae differences on restatement of foreian currency cash and cash eauivatents 8.17 5.48
VI. Cash and cash equivalants at the and of the vear 267.08 199.49
VII1. Cosh and cash sauivalanis as oer note 15
Cash on hand 0.20 0.31
Balances with banks

- In current accournts 178.55 61,59

- In exchange eamers forelon Curenty accounts 88,23 137,59 |

7 199.49 |

1

ReconciNation of chanae in liablktles arising from financing activitles is qlven in note 21.4

The sccompanying notes are an Intearal part of the standalone Anancial statements,

For Waluer Chandiok & Co LLP For and oh behalf of
Chartered Accounta

Firm Registration ng. 001076M/N500013

\<\k\

Manish Agrawesl Krishns Kumar Pant
Partrver Director
Membership No. 507000 DIN: 00198916

avduy [cemnA
Sandeep Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No. F10151

Place: Gurugram
Date : 09 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date : (9 May 2025

bard pf Directors of
ring Private Limited

The abave Standalone Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared vader the "Indirect Method” as $et out In Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flow’,

Director _
DIN: 001988
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
214 Floor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase (I
Gurugram — 122 0492

India

T +91 124 4628099
F +91 124 4628001

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
{'the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the
Group’}, as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consoclidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ('the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards {'Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, as at 31 March 2025, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consclidated cash
flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICA{') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 11 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

v
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 {cont’d)

Information other than the Consclidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

4. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors' Repart, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and ocur
auditor's repoit thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors' Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The accompanying consalidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's Board of
Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for
ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group, and covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Halding Company, as
aforesaid.

6. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basjs for ourcopinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

Chartered Accountants = V
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 {(cont’d)

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Hoiding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrels;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern:

s FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets of Rs.
619.46 million as at 31 March 2025, total revenues of Rs. 376.47 million and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 13.28
million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consalidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements
below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our retiance on the work done by and the reports
of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the predecessor
auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements vide their audit report dated 09 May 2024.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16} of the Act, based cn our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other auditor,
referred to in paragraph 11, on separate financial statements of the subsidiary, we report that the Holding Company,
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the_Act have paid remuneration to their
respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that one subsidiary incor_porated in India whose financial statements

Chartered Acgountants
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15.

Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiary.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the Order reports
issued till date by us and by the other auditor as mentioned in paragraph 11 above, of Company included in the
consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditor
on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

RS2

Except for the matters stated in paragraph 15(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary,
covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, are disqualified as on
31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act:

f)  The gualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith with respect to
the consolidated financial statements are as stated in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b)
of the Act and paragraph 15(h}(vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company, and its subsidiary covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness of such contrats, refer to our
separate report in ‘Annexure 2' wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on

separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act:

e

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group as detailed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements:

it. ~ The Holding Company and its subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary covered under the Act, during the year ended 31 March 2025;

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the cther auditor of
such subsidiary, respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 50(1V)(e)
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or Inaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

its subsidiary to ar in any persons or entities, including foreign entities {‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary {'the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or pravide any guarantee,
security ar the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of
such subsidiary, respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
50(IV){f) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Holding Company or its subsidiary from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or
any such subsidiary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary,
as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our or other
auditors’ notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the management representations
under sub-clauses (a} and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

V. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31
March 2025; and

vi.  As stated in note 50(IV)(r) to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks and that performed by the respeciive auditors of the subsidiary, except for the instances
mentioned below the Holding Company and its subsidiary, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April
2024, have used an accounting software for maintaining their books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we and respective auditors of the
above referred subsidiary did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other
than the consequential impact of the exceptions given below. Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved
by the Holding Company and above referred subsidiary as per the statutory requirements for record retention
in the accounting software from the date the audit trail was enabied for the accounting software;

a) The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any direct data
changes.

b) The accounting software used for maintenance of payroli related records is operated by a third-party
software service provider. The audit trail (edit log) facility at the application level was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, the
‘Independent Service Auditor's Assurance Report on the Description of Controls, their Design and
Operating Effectiveness’ {Type 2 report’ issued in accordance with ISAE 3402, Assurance Reports on
Controls at a Service Organisation} does not have the necessary information on the existence of audit
trail feature at the database level and accordingly we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature
with respect to the database of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's R’/egis)ration No.: 001076N/N500013

o

Manish Agrawal
Partner
Membership No.: 507000

UDIN: 25507000BMMKPJ2096

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025
Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Annexure 1
List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements (in addition to Holding Company)

1. SGS Infosystem Private Limited
2. SGS Solutions GMBH

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks
Manufacturing Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private
Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as ‘the Group’), as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the infernal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which
are companies covered under the Act, as at that date,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI'). These respansibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safegquarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Staternents

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consalidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference o consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company as aforasaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial contrals with reference to consolidated financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors.of the company; and (3) provide reasonable

Chartered Accountants / V \¢ )
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SGS Tekniks
Manufacturing Private Limited on the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(cont'd)

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consclidated Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. nour opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary company, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company, which are company covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established hy the respective companies, considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matter

8. We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to one subsidiary company, which is company covered under the Act, whose consolidated financial
statement reflect total assets of Rs. 110.98 million and net assets of Rs. $8.63 millien as at 31 March 2025, total
revenues of Rs. 3.98 million and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 2.98 million for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company have been audited by other
auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements for the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3){i) of the Act in so far as it relates to
such subsidiary company is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other
auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Agcountants

Fiw);%;dlion No.: 001076N/N500013

Manish Agrawal

Partner

Membership No.: 507000
UDIN: 25507000BMMKPJ2096

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025
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S$GS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

{All amounts are in million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U31501MH2011PTC413733

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A (Assets
I |Non-current assets
{ay Property, plant and equipment 3 1,801.03 1.402.58
{b} Capital work-in-proaress 4 18.14 1.14
{c) Right-of-use assets 5] 197.34 227.69
{d} Goodwiil 5 1,059.29 1.059.29
{2} Other intanaible assets 7 8.19 11.98
{fY Financial assets
iy Other financial assets 9 24.01 22.85
{a} Income tax asset {net) 10 20.79 20.82
{h) Other non-current assets 11 9.95% 9.40
Total non-current assets 3,138.74 2,755.85
II |Current assels
fa} Inventories 12 2.,983.58 2,986.29
{b} Financial assets
{i1 Investments 13 181.28 204.65
{il) Trade receivables 14 2,568.48 1,422.27
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 295.12 240.81
{iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 2.75 3.58
{v) Other financial assets 17 6.65 3.32
(¢) Other current assets 18 272.24 285.60
Total current assets 5,310.10 5.146.53 |
Total assets 9,448.84 7,902.38 |
B |Equity and liabillties
I |Equity
{a} Equity share capital 19 16.13 16.13
{b} Other equity 20 5.784.11 4.878.51
Equity attributable to the owners of the Holding Company 5.800.24 4.894.64
{¢) Non-controlling interests 51.23 45.23
Total equity 5.851.47 4,939.87
II |Llabilities
1 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{I) Borrowings 21 288.87 2.07
{ii) Lease liabilities 46 198.23 220.05
{b) Provisions 22 62.87 50.83
{c} Deferred tax liabilities {net) 48.4 28.53 48.17
{d) Qther non-current liabilittes 23 60,40 35.76
Total non-current liabilities 638.90 356.88
2 |Current liabllities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinas 24 486.08 746.24
{ii} Lease liabillties 46 21.77 2091
(iii} Trade payables 25
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 70.31 54.90
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,976.42 1.522.48
{iv} Other financial liabilities 26 172.47 126.21
(b)Y Other current liabilities 27 175,06 §5.36
(¢) Provisions 28 20.42 15.82
(dy Current tax llabilitles (net) 29 35.94 63.71
Total current llabliities 2,958.47 2,605.63 |
Total liabilities 3,597.37 2.962.51 |
Total aquity and Ilablilities 9,448.84 7,902.38

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financlal statements.

This Is the Consolldated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of sven date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accoyntants

Manish Agrawal | .
Partner |
Membership No. 507000 VAN -fJ

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025

(:::rtcl.(.%z) /‘['“;. al-
P

Krishna Kumar Pant onial
Director
DIN: 00198916 DIN: 00198890

Sandeep/Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No. F10151

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(all amounts are in million [ndian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ICIN: U31501MH2011PTC413733

Particulars Note Year ended Year endad
No 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
1 |Revenue from operations 30 13,741.34 11.514.44
2 [Net qain on foreian currency fluctuations 31 14.27 22.84
3 |Other income 32 18.86 231.07
4 (Total income {1+2+3) 13,774.47 11,560.35
5 |Expenses
fa) Cost of materials consumed 33 10.492.51 8,893.01
(b)Y Changes in Inventaries of finished goods and work-in-progress 34 {21.24) {141.78)
(c) Employee benefits expense 35 652.39 529.52
{d) Finance costs 36 91.96 104.55
{e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 183,20 159.58
(F) Other expenses 37 1,181.17 1,027.82
Total axpeanses 12,579.99 i0,5722.70
6 |Profit before tax (4 - 5] 1,194.48 987.65
7 |Tax expense:
- Current tax {including earlier year taxes) 48.1 304.31 252,58
- Deferred tax credit 48.4 {18.58) {1.61)
Total tax expense 285.73 250.97
8 |Profit after tax (6 - 7) 908.75 736.68
9 |Other comprehensive income
{A) Items that will not ba reclassified to profit and loss
(i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability (4.19) {21.97)
(i) Income tax expenses relatina to the above 1.06 5.53
(3.13) {16.44)
{8) Itams that will be reclassified to profit and loss
{i) Exchange differences in translating financial statements of foreign operations 3.87 0.51
Total other comprehensiva incoma/(loss), net of tax 0.74 {15.93)
10 |Total comprehensive income for the year (8 + 9) 909.49 720.75
11 |Profit for the vear attributable to
Owners of the Holding Company 902.75 717.20
Nen-controlling interests 6.00 19.48
908,75 736.68
12 |Total othar comprehensive income/(loss) foi the year attributable to
Owners of the Holding Company 0.74 {15.93)
Nan-cantrolling interests - -
0.74 (15.93)
13 [Total comprehensive income for the vear attributable to
Owners of the Holding Company 903.49 701.27
Non-controlling interests 6.00 19.48
909.49 720.75
14 |Earnings per eauity share of face value of Rs.10 each 47
- Bastc and Diluted {In Rs.} 559.75 444,70

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratiohnb. 001076N/N500013

Manish Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 507000

Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025

-guc.“‘ ’ﬁ;"”"a" :
andeep Kumar

Krishna Kumar Pant
Director
DIN: 00198916

Company Secretary
Membership No. F10151

Placa: Gurugram
Date: 09 May 2025

CIN: 00398890




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
|Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in million [ndian rupees, unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U31501MH2011PTC413733
Particulars ¥Year ended Year anded
31 March 202% 31 March 2024
L. Cagh flow from operatina activities
Profif before tax 1.194.48 987.65
Adjustiments for:
Decreciation and amortisation expense 183.20 159.58
Finance costs 91.96 104.55
Dividend income {1.49} {2.59
Share based oavment to emplovees 2.11 1.77
Loss on sale of oroperty. olant and eauipment (net} 0.91 0.05
Gain on fair value of current investments {mutual funds) (13.60} (9.811
Allowance for expected credit loss 13.25 30.00
Bad debts written off 5.57 1.25
Liabilities no longer required written back {0.14) {4.85)
Interest income {1.581 (1.28)
Net faain}/ koss on account of sale of investment (0.06) 1.39
Government incentive {5.53) (2.00%
Unrealised exchanae oain (net} (1,30 (9.12)
Operatina orofit bafore working capital chanass 1.467.78 1,256.45
Adfustments for fincrease )/decrease in operating assets;
Inventories 271 (714,961
Trade receivables {1,160.57) 208.25
Other financial assets {5.07) 577
Other non currant assets (0.80% {1.9M
Other cumrent asgets 13.36 15.77
Adiustments for increase / {decrease} in operatina fiabilities.:
Trade pavables 458.15 336.94
Other npon curvent liabilities 7.25 0.76
Other current liabllities 119.70 17.67
Other current financial liabilities 49,20 0407
Provisicns 12.45 (6.14}
Cash flows from oparations 964.15 1.118.61
Direct taxes oaid (net of refunds) (332.01) (248.66)
Net cash flow from operating activities 632.14 £69.95 |
IL. Cagh Now from investing activities
Capital expenditure towards tangible assets (including capital advances, capital work-in-progress, net of {545.47) (418.36)
capital creditors and net of government grant)
Capital expenditure towards intangible assets (5.92% (4.76)
Acauisition of non-controlling interest of subsidiary - {0.40)
Proceads from sale of orooerty. olant and eauicment 9.16 6.63
Dividend received 1.49 2.59
Proceeds from sale of investment {net) 37.03 0.68
(Increasel/decrease in llen marked/marain money deposits (0.3 2.25
Interest received on deoosits 1.37 2,12
Nat cagh used in investing activities (502.71) (411.25)
II1. Cash flow from financing activitias
Repavment of non current borrowinas 11.99) {4.10)
Proceeds from non current borrowinas 288,79 -
Proceeds irom current borrowing (net) {260.16) 120193
Pavment of tease liabilities 137.14) {35.59
Finance costs paid (76.66) {87,361
Net cash used in financing activitias {87.18) {328.98)
IV. Increase in cash and cash sguivalents (I + II + III} 42.27 129.72
V. {Cash and cash equivalents at the beainnina of the vear 240.81 104.10
Add: Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents 12.04 6.99
V1. Cash and cash equivalents at tha and of tha vear 295.12 240.81
VIL. Cash and cash eoulvalents as per noie 15
Cash on hand 0.30 0.3
Balances with banks
~ It current accounts 206.59 102.91
- In exchange eamers forelan currency accounts 88,23 137,59 |
28512 240.81 |
|Reconclllation of chanae In liabllittes arisina from financino activities is aiven in note 21.5
The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method™ as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statemant of Cash Flow’.
The accompanvying notes are an | | park of the ¢ tidated finandal staterments,
This Is the Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flow rafemmed to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandioh & Co LLP
Firm Registration po. 001076N/N500013
Chartered Accol ts
\\.
Manish Agrawal Krigshna Kumar Pant
Partner Director
Membership No. S07000 DIN: 00198916
O 'i) /EW 1
andeep Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership Mo, F10151
Place ; Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date ; 09 May 2025 Date : 09 May 2025
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Perfect 1D India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Perfect ID India
Private Limited (the “Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes
to the Standalone financial statements including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Standalone financial
statements"), -

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025 and its loss, total comprehensive income/loss, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SA" 5) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the Standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Board Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. (5200




G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

In connection with our audit report of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
our work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including

the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intend to liquidate the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS® RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsos
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» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The ri;k of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
rc?'ultmg ﬂ'ﬂn‘f error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the intenal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which there
were no material foreseeable losses.

iii) The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note no. 44 (IV)(f)(i)] no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief as disclosed in note no. 44 (IV)(f)(ii), except for loans obtained for
the purpose of onward lending, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from
any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics;

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material

misstatement.

v) Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the year
nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting requirement of clause
(f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable on the Company.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of an audit trail

feature being tampered with.

h) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has beenpaid
to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Rcsywsmmsmm

Anshu Gupta
(Partner)
Membership No. 077891

UDIN: 2501 P9) BMA A k515

Place: Gurugram
Date; 9 May 2025




ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date of Perfect ID India Private Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION 143(11)
OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i) In respect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a)

b)

c)

d)

A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. . _

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a phased manner
over a period of three years., in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all
such items at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties of frechold land as at the
balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken
on lease and disclosed as Right of use asset in the Standalone financial statements,
the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the
lessee in the agreement. Hence, reporting requirement of Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order

is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii)  In respect of clause 3(ii), we state that: -

a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate; Discrepancies noticed were less than 10% for each class of

inventory.

b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees in aggregate from banks during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Company is not required
to submit any quarterly returns or statements with banks and financial institutions.




iii)

vi)

vii)
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In respect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: -

2)

b)

During the year the company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature
of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

In our opinion, terms and conditions of the grant of loans are prima facie, not prejudicial
to the Company's interest. Further, the Company has neither provided any guarantee to
any entity nor made any investment during the year.

The company has not given any loans and advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii)(c), 3(ii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185 of the
Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 (1) of the Act,
accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not apply to the

Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits as
per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company,

a) The Company has been gencrally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, and other material
statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory dues
were in arrears as of 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, there were no disputed demand for Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services
Tax which have not been deposited with relevant authorities as on March 31, 2025.
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There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -

The company hasn't defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the
payment of interest thercon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not raised term loans during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements
of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the company.

The Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of it associate.

With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under Clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

xi)

xii)

xiii)

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

With respect to clause 3(xi), we state that: -

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year”

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable. .

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of examination of records of the company, all transaction entered into with the
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Related Pa.rti,.-a are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and thc details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv)  With respect to reporting under clause 3(xiv), we state that: -

b)

xv)

xvi)

a)

b)

xvii)

xviil)

xix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent

of our audit procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are

not applicable.

With respect to Clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not into business of Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) and (d)

of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, and we have taken
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the

company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to ths date of the
P‘E!EDD"‘)‘&
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Chartered
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Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 007891
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audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect
of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amount that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the company Act 2013, in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. This
matter has been disclosed in Note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no unspent amount sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant
to any ongoing projects, those are required to be transferred to a special account in in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. This matter has been disclosed in Note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

& Associates LLP
Accountants
No. 000257N/N500339

UDIN:2 $07%29) B MA A ks 1SR

Place: Gurugram
Date:09™ May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

mef:;:cd to in cla:use (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Perfect ID India
Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, i conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over {inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or crror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with
reference to Standalone financial statements.
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL

i ! CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL

A cc_-lrinpa,ny'x mu;:;ml financial control over financial
provide reas ¢ assurance regarding the reliabili i i
preparation of Standalone financial statements for :xttgm:{ pmil muﬁcifgana:;dw?ﬂ:
genem_ll:.r ancc;_:t:d accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
nf records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
a’_f the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
n:l_mucturs of \the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements,

reporting is a process designed to

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the cssential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339
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Perfect ID India Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Audited Assets and Liabilities For The Period Ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

- As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A |ASSETS
I |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 250.57 248.53
(b) Right-of-use assets 4 100.20 113.44
(c) Other intangible assets 5 7.69 9.01
(d) Financial assets
(i) Non-current investments 7 46.09 9.75
(ii) Other financial assets 8 4.30 4.17
(e) Income tax asset (net) 9 8.51 8.45
(f) Other non-current assets 10 0.04 10.37
Total non-current assets 417.40 403.72
II |Current Assets
(a) Inventories 11 165.17 167.58
(b) Financial assets
(i) Current investments 12 42.12 12.54
(ii) Trade receivables 13 59.79 126.89
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14.1 9.99 21.11
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14.2 7.35 2.57
(v) Other financial assets 15 1.09 5.08
(c) Other current assets 16 56.91 49.26
Total current assets 342.42 385.03
Total assets 759.82 788.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 17 22.55 22.55
(b) Other equity 18 560.32 569.29
Total equity 582.87 591.84
II [Liabilities
1 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 38 103.54 109.61
(b) Provisions 19 2.00 2.80
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 40.4 0.60 3.38
Total non-current liabilities 106.14 115.79
2 |Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 10.31 0.86
(ii) Lease liabilities 38 5.04 5.36
(iii) Trade payables 21
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1.23 6.98
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 47.82 62.05
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other current financial liabilities 22 1.44 2.80
(b) Other Current liabilities 24 4.35 2.24
(c) Provisions 25 0.62 0.83
Total current liabilities 70.81 81.12
Total liabilities 176.95 196.91
Total equity and liabilities 759.82 788.75

In terms of our report attached

For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Anshu Gupta

Partner

Membership number: 077891
Place : New Delhi

Date : Oth May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Perfect ID India Private Limited
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Diregor Director
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Perfect ID India Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Audited Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 |Revenue from operations 26 338.36 597.94
2 |Net Gain on foreign currency fluctuations 27 2.13 4.63
3 |Other Income 28 39.89 14.41
4 |Totalincome (1+2+3) 380.38 616.98
5 |Expenses
(@) Cost of materials consumed 29 202.26 379.48
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (21.99)
30 (33.60)
(c) Employee benefits expense 31 44.31 52.86
(d) Finance costs 32 13.11 6.18
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 41.43 22.72
(f) Other Expenses 33 112.26 97.28
Total expenses 391.38 524.92
6 |Profit before tax (4 - 5) (11.00) 92.06
Tax expense:
- Current tax 40 0.00 21.10
- Tax pertaining to previous years 0.00 (1.32)
- Deferred tax (net) 40 (2.61) 2.87
Total tax expense (2.61) 22.65
Profit for the Year (6 -7) (8.39) 69.41
9 |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (0.88) 0.79
(ii) Income tax expenses relating to the above 0.20 (0.20)
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Effective portion on cash flow hedge 0.12 0.00
(ii) Income tax expenses relating to the above (0.03) 0.00
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (0.59) 0.59
10 |Total comprehensive income for the year (8.98) 70.00
(8+9)
11 |Earnings per equity share
- Basic (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 39 (3.72) 30.79
- Diluted (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 39 (3.72) 30.79

In terms of our report attached
For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration r{i00257N/N500339

F

Membership number: 077891
Place : New Delhi

Date : 9th May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Perfect ID India Private Limited

CIN: U32109HR2015PTC124016
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Sa Singh Sanjiv Narayan
Dire3or Director
DIN: 02122153 DIN: 00198864

Place : Gurugram, Haryana Place : Gurugram, Haryana
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Perfect ID India Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Audited Cash Flow For The Year Ending 31st March, 2025

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for

Income Tax expense

Depreciation and Amortisation expense

Finance Costs

Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Interest on Income tax Refund

Corporate allocation charges

Net gain on account of sale of current investments (Mutual funds)
Mark-to-Market (MTM) gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL
Provision/(Reversal) of Allowance for Expected Credit loss
Liabilities No Longer Required Written back

Loss on investment in partnership firm

Investment written off

Unrealised Exchange (gain) / loss (net)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital/Other Changes

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Other Current Financial Assets

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Other Non-Current Assets

Other Current Assets

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables

Non-Current Provisions

Current Provisions

Other Current Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations

Direct Taxes Paid (net)

Net Cash Flow from / (Used in) Operating Activities

II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure towards tangible assets (including capital advances, net of capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment

Capital expenditure towards intangible assets

Investments in unquoted equity shares

Investment in mutual funds (net)

Interest Received on Bank Deposits

Net Cash from / (Used in) Investing Activities

III. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of Eauitv Share Canital

Proceeds from issue of Preference Share Capital
Redemntion of Preference Share Canital

Long term borrowings repaid

Long Term Borrowings Repaid

(Repayment)/Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (net)
Unsecured Loan taken from Related Party

Unsecured Loan repaid to Related Party

Payment of lease liabilities

Finance Costs Paid

(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits in Lien Marked/Margin Money deposits

Net Cash from / (Used in) Financing Activities

IV. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I + II + III)

V. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year
Add: Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents

VI. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year (IV + V)

VII. Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note 14.1

(11.00) 92.06
41.43 22.72
13.11 6.18
(0.64) (2.14)
(0.29) -
(0.98) (10.97)

(37.20) (0.03)
(0.67) 0.00
(0.52) (1.27)

0.38 (0.91)
3.63 105.64
2.41 (45.71)
67.48 (59.28)
4.10 (3.98)
0.03 (6.48)
0.00 (0.04)
(7.65) (48.28)

(19.45) 28.73
(0.80) (0.09)
(1.09) 0.93
(1.36)

2.11 (5.20)

49.41 (33.76)

0.23 (30.61)
49.64 (64.37)
(18.68) (190.25)
0.00 0.00
(1.38) (8.91)
(27.61) 240.64
0.36 1.93
(47.31) 43.41
9.45 (0.87)

(16.59) (6.98)
(1.43) (0.95)
(4.78) (1.04)

(13.35) (9.84)|

(11.02) (30.80)
21.11 51.76|
(0.10) 0.15

9.99 21.11
9.99 21.11
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Perfect ID India Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity st ital (Refer Note 17)

Particulars

No. of shares
(In full number)

Amount

Balance as at 31 March 2023

22,54,550

22.55

Changes in equity share capital during the year:
Issue of equity shares

Balance as at 31 March 2024

22,54,550

22.55

Changes in equity share capital during the year:
Issue of equity shares

Balance as at 31 March 2025

22,54,550

22.55

B. Other Equitv (Refer Note 18)

Particulars

Retained Earnings

Capital Reserve

Total

Balance as at 31 March 2023 495.94 1.67 497.61
Profit for the Year 69.41 69.41
Additions during the year -

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, (net of Income tax) 0.59 - 0.59
Balance as at 31 March 2024 565.94 1.67 567.61
Profit for the Year (8.37) - - 8.37
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, (net of Income tax) (0.68) - - 0.68
Balance as at 31 March 2025 556.88 3.35 560.23
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Perfect ID India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
OPINION |

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Perfect ID India
Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes
to the Consolidated financial statements including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2025 and its loss, total comprehensive income/loss, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated
financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Board Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. AEOCTTN




G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

;n connection with our audit report of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
our work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do
5.

The board of directors are also respoﬁsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we cxercis&).pr_:qfessional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:> /¢
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, according to information and explanation given to us and in respective of the
associates LLP whose CARO report is not available to us therefore we ar;_gﬁ}'a“ﬁi&ib‘.‘_ pmment
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order of the assocg:jtcs "

4] i
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which there
were no material foreseeable losses.

iii) The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief note no. 44 (IV)(f)(ii), no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. S EN
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

b) Tht.t Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief note no. 44 (IV)(f)(ii), except for loans obtained for the purpose of
onward lending, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v) Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the year
nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting requirement of clause
(f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable on the Company.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of an audit trail
feature being tampered with.

h) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has beenpaid
to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339 A
(‘ Delhi /
Anshi Gupta \2 )\
(Partner)

Membership No. 077891 o
UDIN: 2451489) BM N AYL S (3 4

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9%'May:2025



G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

ANNEXURE - BTO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Refe_rred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE () OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Perfect ID India
Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

reference to Consolidated financial statements.
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FIN
EEPORTING ANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL

A cqmpany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide _reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
gcnera}ly accel'Jtcd accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of recfn"ds that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of \the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the Consolidated Consolidated financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Rﬁ?‘o. 000257N/N500339

Anshu Gupta
(Partner) oS
Membership No. 077891 RACE
UDIN: 25-037 891 BN AM -84 31\
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Perfect ID India Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Audited Assets and Liabilities For The Period Ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

- As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A |ASSETS
I |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 250.57 248.53
(b) Right-of-use assets 4 100.20 113.44
(c) Other intangible assets 5 7.69 9.01
(d) Financial assets
(i) Non-current investments 7 46.15 9.91
(ii) Other financial assets 8 4.30 4.17
(e) Income tax asset (net) 9 8.51 8.45
(f) Other non-current assets 10 0.04 10.37
Total non-current assets 417.46 403.88
II [Current Assets
(@) Inventories 11 165.17 167.58
(b) Financial assets
(i) Current investments 12 42.12 12.54
(i) Trade receivables 13 59.79 126.89
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14.1 9.99 21.11
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14.2 7.35 2.57
(v) Other financial assets 15 1.09 5.08
(c) Other current assets 16 56.91 49.26
Total current assets 342.42 385.03
Total assets 759.88 788.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 17 22.55 22.55
(b) Other equity 18 560.38 569.45
Total equity 582.93 592.00
II [Liabilities
1 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 38 103.54 109.61
(b) Provisions 19 2.00 2.80
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 40.4 0.60 3.38
Total non-current liabilities 106.14 115.79
2 |Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 10.31 0.86
(ii) Lease liabilities 38 5.04 5.36
(iii) Trade payables 21
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1.23 6.98
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 47.82 62.05
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other current financial liabilities 22 1.44 2.80
(b) Other Current liabilities 24 4.35 2.24
(c) Provisions 25 0.62 0.83
Total current liabilities 70.81 81.12
Total liabilities 176.95 196.91
Total equity and liabilities 759.88 788.91

In terms of our report attached

For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reaqistratinn, nn. NNN257N/NSNN339
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Partner
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Perfect ID India Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Audited Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 [Revenue from operations 26 338.36 597.94
2 |Net Gain on foreign currency fluctuations 27 2.13 4.63
3 |Other Income 28 39.89 14.41
4 |Totalincome (1+2+3) 380.38 616.98
5 |Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 29 202.26 379.48
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (21.99)
30 (33.60)
(c) Employee benefits expense 31 44.31 52.86
(d) Finance costs 32 13.11 6.18
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 41.43 22.72
(f) Other Expenses 33 112.26 97.28
Total expenses 391.38 524.92
6 |Profit before tax (4 - 5) (11.00) 92.06
7 |Tax expense:
- Current tax 40 0.00 21.10
- Tax pertaining to previous years 0.00 (1.32)
- Deferred tax (net) 40 (2.61) 2.87
Total tax expense (2.61) 22.65
8 |Share of Post-acquisition Profit of Associate (0.10) 0.00
9 |Profit for the Year (6 -7) (8.49) 69.41
10 |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (0.88) 0.79
(ii) Income tax expenses relating to the above 0.20 (0.20)
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Effective portion on cash flow hedge 0.12 0.00
(ii) Income tax expenses relating to the above (0.03) 0.00
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (0.59) 0.59
11 |Total comprehensive income for the year (9.08) 70.00
(8+9)
12 |Earnings per equity share
- Basic (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 39 (3.76) 30.79
- Diluted (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 39 (3.76) 30.79

In terms of our report attached
For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reqistration(jj00257N/N500339

Partnér
Membership number: 077891
Place : New Delhi

Date : 9th May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Perfect ID India Private Limited

CIN: U32109HR2015PTC124016 N
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Sa Singh Sanijiv Narayan
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DIN: 02122153 DIN: 00198864

Place : Gurugram, Haryana Place : Gurugram, Haryana
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Perfect ID India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Audited Cash Flow For The Year Ending 31st March, 2025
(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax (11.00) 92.06
Income Tax expense
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 41.43 22.72
Finance Costs 13.11 6.18
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment - -
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (0.64) (2.14)
Interest on Income tax Refund (0.29) -
Corporate allocation charges - -
Net gain on account of sale of current investments (Mutual funds) (0.98) (10.97)
Mark-to-Market (MTM) gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL (37.20) (0.03)
Provision/(Reversal) of Allowance for Expected Credit loss (0.67) 0.00
Liabilities No Longer Required Written back (0.52) (1.27)
Loss on investment in partnership firm
Investment written off
Unrealised Exchange (gain) / loss (net) 0.38 (0.91)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital/Other Changes 3.63 105.64
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 2.41 (45.71)
Trade Receivables 67.48 (59.28)
Other Current Financial Assets 4.10 (3.98)
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 0.03 (6.48)
Other Non-Current Assets 0.00 (0.04)
Other Current Assets (7.65) (48.28)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables (19.45) 28.73
Non-Current Provisions (0.80) (0.09)
Current Provisions (1.09) 0.93
Other Current Financial Liabilities (1.36)
Other Current Liabilities 2.11 (5.20)
Cash Generated from Operations 49.41 (33.76)
Direct Taxes Paid (net) 0.23 (30.61)
Net Cash Flow from / (Used in) Operating Activities 49.64 (64.37)
II. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure towards tangible assets (including capital advances, net of capital creditors) (18.68) (190.25)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.00 0.00
Capital expenditure towards intangible assets (1.38) (8.91)
Investments in unquoted equity shares - -
Investment in mutual funds (net) (27.61) 240.64
Interest Received on Bank Deposits 0.36 1.93
Net Cash from / (Used in) Investing Activities (47.31) 43.41
III. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Eauitv Share Capital
Proceeds from issue of Preference Share Capital
Redemntion of Preference Share Canital
Long term borrowings repaid 9.45 (0.87)
Long Term Borrowings Repaid
(Repayment)/Proceeds from Short Term Borrowinas (net)
Unsecured Loan taken from Related Party
Unsecured Loan repaid to Related Party
Payment of lease liabilities (16.59) (6.98)
Finance Costs Paid (1.43) (0.95)
(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits in Lien Marked/Margin Money deposits (4.78) (1.04)
Net Cash from / (Used in) Financing Activities (13.35) (9.84)
IV. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I + II + III) (11.02) (30.80)
V. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 21.11 51.76
Add: Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (0.10) 0.15
VI. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year (IV + V) 9.99 21.11
VII. Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Note 14.1 9.99 21.11
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For GSA & Associates LLP Perfect ID India Private Limited N
CIN: U32109HR2015PTC124016 [
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Sa Singh Sanjiv Narayan

Partner Dir€{gor Director
Membership number: 077891 DIN: 02122153 DIN: 00198864
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram, Haryana Place : Gurugram, Haryana

Date : 9th May 2025 Date : 9th May 2025 Date : 9th May 2025




Perfect ID India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity s ital (Refer Note 17)

Particulars No. of shares Amount
(In full number)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 22,54,550 22.55

Changes in equity share capital during the vear:
Issue of equity shares -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 22,54,550 22.55

Changes in equity share capital during the year:
Issue of equity shares

Balance as at 31 March 2025 22,54,550 22.55

B. Other Equitv (Refer Note 18)
Particulars Retained Earnings Capital Reserve Total

Balance as at 31 March 2023 497.78 1.67 499.45
Profit for the Year 69.41 69.41
Additions during the year -
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, (net of Income tax) 0.59 - 0.59
Balance as at 31 March 2024 567.78 1.67 569.45
Profit for the Year (8.47) - - 8.47
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, (net of Income tax) (0.68) - - 0.68
Balance as at 31 March 2025 558.62 1.67 560.29
For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Perfect ID India Private Limited A
Firm Registrationzno. 000257N/N500339 CIN: U32109HR2015PTC124016 kj
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Anshu Gupta Sanjiv Narayan

Partner Dir€ggor Director
Membership number: 077891 DIN: 02122153 DIN: 00198864
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram, Haryana Place : Gurugram, Haryana

Date : 9th May 2025 Date : 9th May 2025 Date : 9th May 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Syrma Johari Medtech Limited

(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Syrma Johari Medtech
Limited (Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited) (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
(he aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at
March 31, 2025, its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity

for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we
havd fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with i

L isduot il these requirements and the




Independent Auditor’s Report of Syrma Johari Medtech Limited, Jodhpur (F.Y. 2024-25)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Other Information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive incomc,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Director’s either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of Standalone Financial Statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
"1 represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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!\/lﬂlcrinlily is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalonc Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the result of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31% March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of

the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating eflectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”, Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
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remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provision of section 197 of the Act. |

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2025 which
would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
disclosed in the notes 49(VII)(g) to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, disclosed in the notes 49(VII)(h) to the financial statements no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub- clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
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transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tempered
with and audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
F?entral Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure-B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For PHOPHALIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001184C

| Y
PRAFFUL PHOPHALIA
Partner

Place: Jodhpur
Date: 8" May, 2025 M No. 415877
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SYRMA JOHARI MEDTECH LIMITED

(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Regd. Office: G-582 to 584, EPIP, Boranada
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

AI;I:I‘.EXUGRE_ A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
erred to in Paragraph 1(f) under the heading of *‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements of
Syrma Johari Medtech Limited (Formerly known
as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited) (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s  Responsibility for Internal

Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements based on the internal control with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the -
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fi
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guid

i

fc ﬁ’?

Note”) issued by the ICAT and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements. Those Standards and Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements and their  operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risks. The procedures

selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial

Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

ialL/A X\ the reliability of financial reporting and the

reparation of financial statements for external
urposes in accordance with generally accepted




SYRMA JOHARI MEDTECH LIMITED

(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Regd. Office: G-582 to 584, EPIP, Boranada
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

ANNEXURE- A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025
eferred o in Paragraph I(f) under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that the
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of
Management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to Standalone Financial

Statements

Because of inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For PHOPHALIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001184C

PRAFFUL PHOPHALIA
Jodhpur Partner
8" May, 2025 M No. 415877
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PERIOD ENDED 31* MARCH, 2025

f our report of even date

ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE

Referr in Paraars : ; '
¢d 1o in Paragraph 2 under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal nnd Regulatory Requirements’ 0

the Company and the books of

In terms of the information and explanation sought by us and given by
he best of our knowledge and

accpunl and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to t
belief , we state that;

0] () The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situations of Property, Plant & Equipment, capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets. Further the Company has also
maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The company has program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital work-
in-progress, and right-of-use assets, soto cover all the items once every three years which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for
verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during the
year. According to information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. In respect of dies lying with third parties, confirmation

of assets has been obtained and produced before us. .

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the
title deeds of immovable property (other than immovable property where company is
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date.
However Immovable Property acquired prior to change in name from Johari Digital
Healthcare Limited to Syrma Johari Medtech Limited are still held in name of Johari

Digital Healthcare Limited and company is in process of changing the name.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and Intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as
at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories except for goods-in-transit were physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
operations. In respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received subsequent to the
year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories
were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of

account.

(ii) _(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has working capital limits in
excess of five crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In
our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements, book ciebt
statements, statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/ other receivables, and :nher
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PERIOD ENDED 31* MARCH, 2025

ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE
four report of even date

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 0

stipulated financial information subsequently filed by the company with such banks are
generally in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the company, of the

respective quarters.

(1ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of

records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or any other parties which were outstanding at any point during the year,
and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a), (b) (except to the extent it pertains to investments),

(c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

With respect to clause 3(iii)(b), the investments made by the Company are, in our opinion, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

ation and explanations given to us and based on the

(iv) In our opinion and according to the inform
ction 186 of

audit procedures performed, the Company has complied with the provisions of Se
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any
loans or provided guarantees or securities that are covered under the provision of section 185 of

the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

)
The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the
Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

(vi)

complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(2) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods &
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the

appropriate authorities during the year.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31¥' March 2025 for a period of more than six months

from the date they become payable.

There are no stz}tutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
on account of disputes as on March 31, 2025.




SYRMA JOHARI MEDTECH LIMITED

(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Regd. Office: G -582 to 584, EPIP, Boranada
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

(xii) The pompany is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013, with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a)  In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for
period under audit. -

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or persons connected with its directors and therefore the provisions of Section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@  Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reservé Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and
(c)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  The Group does not have any CICs. and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the

(xvil) :
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We however state
that this is not an assurance as to future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

G




SYRMA JOHARI MEDTECH LIMITED

(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Regd. Office: G -582 to 584, EPIP, Boranada
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

R
ED 31t MARCH, 2025

f our report of even date

ANNEXURE-
Referred 10 ir?P:;? rINthEPE.l'\TI)ENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE PERIOD END
graph 2 under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requircments’ 0

(Xx Th - X B4
: (CgR():omé) any has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsﬂ?lhty

i1 Sk a; there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund spec1ﬁed

chedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of

sub section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For PHOPHALIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001 184C

L/
PRAFFUL PHOPHALIA
Partner

Place: Jodhpur
Date: 8'""May, 2025 Membership No.415877




Syrma Johar| Medtech L)
Standalone Balance Sho

al ns at
(All amounts are In Million 31 March 2025

mited (Formarly known as Joharl Digital leaithcara Limited)

Indlan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Total equity and llabliities

Partl i As at
=1 N culars MOt n M‘::c';ll 2025 31 March 2024
I |ASSETS el B e
(1) |Nan-current nssats
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 207.34 144,44
(b) Right of use assets a 01.52 71.05
:3,) r1::““” work-In-progress 5 67.95 0.00
tongible nssets G 7.99 2.14
(e) Intangible asset under development 7 16.20 0.10
(r) Financial Assets
(i) Non-Current Investments B 0.01 0.01
(Il) Loans 9 = .
(Ill) Other Financlal Assets 10 7.30 1,55
(@) Other non-current assets 11 2.93 1.35
(h) Deferred Tax Asscts (net) 12 10,52 12.40
Totnl non-current nsscts 407.75 233.04
(2) [Currant assets
() Inventories 13 245,55 162,58
(b) Financiol Assets
(1) Current Investments 14 290.19 135.28
(Il) Trade Recelvables 15 621,96 700,15
(Iliy Cash and cash equivalents 16(1) 80.58 106.61
(lv) Dank Balance other than (1I1) Above 16(11) .04 2.58
{v) Other financial assets 17 1.92 9.65
(c) Current Lox pssets (net) 18 3.90 .
(0) Uther current assets 19 68,43 B.76
Totnl current asscts 1,316.38 1,125.60
Tatal Assels ~1,724.13 1‘353.64
11 |EQUITY AND LIADILITIES
(1) |Equity
(a) Equity share capital 20 33,73 34,77
{b) Other equity 21 1,272.48 1,105.25
Total Equity 1,306.21 1,140.02
(2) |Liabllities
Nan Current Llabllities
(a) Financlal Llabllities
(1) Borrowings 22 B80.00
(i1} Lease Liabilities 18.40 &
(b) Provisiens 23 17.23 15.38
{c) Deferred tax liabllities (net) . .
Tatal non-current llabllities 115,63 15.38
(3)|Current Llabllities
(@) Financial Lianilities
(1) Borrowings 24 19.66 48.27
(Il) Lease Llabllities 4.33 -
(ill) Trade payables 25
- Dues of micro and small enterprises 7.65 6.85
. Dues of other than micro and small enterprises 117.67 121.26
(Iv) Other financial liabiitles 26 44,15 0.08
(b) Short term provisions 27 5.10 5.46
(¢) Current Tax Llabilities (net) 28 - 10.70
(d) Other current liabilities 29 103.43 10.62
Total current llabllities 302,29 203.24
Total llabllitles 417.92 218.62
1,724.13 1,358.64

(1-51)

See accompanylng noles forming parts Lo the financlal platements

Tn terms of our renort attached
For Phophalia & Co,
Charlered Accountants

firm Reglstration No. 001184C

V- ".".I. \ |

Praffl.fdhophllln Er"; J 2
Partner oA ]
M,No, - 415677 JODHPUR [.‘;|
ALY/

i

Plece: Jodhpur

For and on beholf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Joharl Medtech Limited

CIN U45201RJI1095PLCO09997

N

. Jaharl

Executlve Chalrman
DIN - 00381160
Place: Miami, FL
date: 8 May 2025

o 1
Place: Delhl
Date: 8 May 2025

- 00017964

Suhaa trimraa

Suhps S. Tamras

Chiet Executive Oflicer

Place: Juuhpur
Date: 8 May 2025

[Data: o My 2025




Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss for th
en e i
(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees unless othe:vT:eu:aet::}Ed ki

Syrma Joharl Medt
ech Limited (Formerly known as Joharl Digital Healthcare Limited)

For the year ended

For the year ended

P
articulars Note No.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I Revenue
Eevenue from opferaﬁons 30 1,077.37 1,414.62
et gain on Foreign Currency Fluctuations 13.87 18.14
Other Income 31 31.30 22,97
Total income 1,122.54 1,455.73
II Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 32 267.21 572.60
Change In inventory of finished goods and work In 4.3
progress 34 13.66 34.33
Purchase of Stock In Trade 33 0.51 1.47
Employee benefits expense 35 231.41 171.28
Finance Cost 36 7.16 3.13
Depreciation and amortization expense 37 26.32 15.57
Other expenses 38 175.43 185.66
Total Expenses 721.70 984.04
111 |Profit before Tax 400.84 471.69
1V |Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 46 102.00 124.94
(b) Short/excess provision of tax In respect of earlier years (1.42) 3.13
(c) Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 46 1.90 (5.97)
Total tax expense 102.48 122,10
\" Profit after tax (III- V) 298.36 349.59
VI |Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and lass
Fair Value changes relating to own credit risk of Financial
liabilities designated at Fair value through Profit or Loss = )
Income Tax relating to above itern - =
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurernent gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan (0.09) (0.13)
Income tax relating to above 0.02 0.03
Total ather comprehensive loss for the year (0.06) (0.10)
Total Comprehensive Income 298.29 349.49
Vv1I |Eamnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 45
- Basic (in Rs) R85.79 100.52
- Dlluted (in Rs) 85.79 100.52
See accompanying notes forming parts to the financial
statements (1-51)

In terms of our report attached
For Phophalia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001184C

iy ]
%W/
S. Joharl

Executive Chalrman
DIN - 00381160

Pral’ful/Phophalla
partner
M.No. - 415877

Place: Miami, FL

Place: Jodhpur
Date: 8 May 2025

Place: Delhl

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Joharl Medtech Limited
CIN U45201R)I1995PLC009997

Date: 8 May 2025

Sehda tamraae

Suhas S. Tamras
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Jodhpur
Date: 8 May 2025

Date: 8 May 2025




K

yrma Johari Madtach Limited (Formerly known as Jahari Digital Healthcare Limited)
fitandalone Cash rlow Statement for the yeor ended 31 March 2025
(AN amaurts aee Iy Milhon Indlan Mupees unless ethermise stofed)

Particulare - =

ror the year ended | For the year anded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash flows fram operating activities
Wet profit before tax 400,84 AT1.E9
Adjustments for;
Depreciatinn and Amortination Cxpense 16,32 15.57
Het (0ain)/ loss on account of sala of current Investment {1.80) (6.33)
Allowsnce far ECL 5.61 9.15
Falr Value Change In Current Investmant (18.13) (4.32)
Financ roety 7.16 313
Inlerest incama on financial asset measured at amortiyed cost (0.50) (2.76)
Unrealsed Frehange (Galn)/Loas- net (1.03) (7.54)
Emplayes Steck Comp alion Cxpanse 1.96 . =
Share based expense Lo Non Cxecutive Direcior 0.93 -
et (gain)/ loss on isposal of RIGht Lo Use of Assat - (1.92]
Net (gain)/ Ioss on disposal of property, planl and equipment (2.79) (4.21)
Operating profil before Working Capital changes 418.58 462.48
Adjustmants for changes In Oparating Assets
(Increasa)/Deciease in trade recelvalies 73.15 {361.87)
(Increasn)/Ducreasa In Inventories (82.97) 215,55
(Increacm)/Decreass in other financiol pxsets (curient) 7.73 9.10}
(Increasn)/Decranses In other nan current fnanclel ossals (2.23) 0.23
(Increane)/Decrease in other current assets (59.68) 18,64
(Intreane)fCecrease in nther non cureent agsots 10.47) .61
Increase/(Ducreace) in trace paynlilee (1.92) (16.64)
Increpse/(Decrease] in ather financial labilities 0.00 (0.36)
Increpse/(Gecrense) In olher Labilties 27 (24,94
Incroase/{Decrease) In provitions 1.71 2.45
Cash genarated fram/(use In) operaiions 28.01 (167.24)
Income taxes refund/{pald)=net | (115.18) {112.13)
Mat each flow from/(uea In) operaling activities (A) 331.43 1B4.11
Cash flows from Investing activities
Capital wxpenditure on Tangible Assets & Right of Use Assels (110.76) (43.83)
{Inckiding cooital advances net of Caoital Croditors)
Capital expendilure on Intanaible assets {18.91) {1.23)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment & ROU 5.47 35,35
Froceeds from sale off (Investiient In) Current Investment- et [134,98) (7490}
Eroceeds from sale of) (Invectment n Mon Current Investment- pet {0.01)
Maturity olf [Investmant In) Dank Depasits (4.78) 102.24
Interest recewed on deposite 0.50 2.76
Net Cash from/{use In) Investing activities (B) (263.45) 25.29
Cush NMowe fram financing activities
Hepaymont/ Avallnmnt of Long Tarm barrowings 03.62 {0.66)
Hepayment/ Avallment of Short Tenm borrowings (31.24) Ad,62
Purchipse of Shares fiom secendary market by Johan Employae Wellare Trust (135.00) .
Payment of Leasa Llability (4.36) -
Oividends Pald - (250.35)
finapce Conl {5.90) £3.13)
Net cash from/(use In) financing activities (C) (93.87) (209.52)
Mot Incruase/ (ducreasa) In cash and cash squivalants (A+D+cC) (25.89) (0.13)
Casli and cash equivalents ot the beglnnirg of year 106,61 100,68
Effacts of exchange differences on relnstatement of foreign curroncy Cich and Cash {0.14) n.04
Ex, ||l‘vgj-u_t’ . 2 r
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year IS [ 80.58 ~ 106,61
Reconaliation of cash and cash aquivalents ox per the cash flow statement T e
Cash and cash equlvalents as finr suave comprise af the lollowing: =

March 31, 2018 arch 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents (nnte 16(1)) B0.58 106,61
Bulances at the and of the year e 80,58 106,61
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial satoments. 151
In terims uf aur repart atlached Far and on bahall of the
:?r psm:lhclia slt:o. Syrma loharl Madiach u:.?::: of Directors of

arlered Accounlants HU

Firm HRegistration Na, UU1164C CIN UAB201011008 P 1000007

%, Joharl
Frecutive Chaimen
Prafful Phophalls DIN - Do3m 160
Partner Place: Mlami, p
M.Na, - 415077

Datar B May 2035

JODFPUR

Data1 6 May 2025

Sufa.d.m

Suhos S, Tamras
Chiaf Executive Officer
Place: Jod hpur

Data; nm! 1025

Place: Judhpur
Date: 0 025
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PHOPHALIA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
:L!MCnm (Hons.) C.S.,, C.A.
) 9314016182 CE:
g% SlllglllA.\I PHIOPHALIA Ty 6-8, AMARDEEP cco):‘[};'LEi"
Lom, C.A £ )
,CA, FLOOR, 3 RD ‘B’ ROAD,
(M) 9610117999 (0) 2434668 SA;]S;S\LPURA, JODHPUR-342003
E-Mail ID: - praffulkphophalia@gmail.com/ audit@phophaliaandco.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members of

Syrma Johari Medtech Limited
(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accdmpanying consolidated financial statements of Syrma Johari
Medtech Limited (Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited) (“Parent”) and its
subsidiary (Parent and its subsidiary together referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statement, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
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("ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Other Information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. '

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements :

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Boards of Directors of the
entities included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection of the appropriate accounting
software for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations including those related
to retention of audit logs; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
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preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Parent, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Director’s either
intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the group. '

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial

Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate
internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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rclatf:d to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the result of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements

in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. '

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial information of the subsidiary included in the Group whose
financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 3.62 Million as at 31% March 2025, total
revenues of Rs. 29.91 Million, total net profit after tax of Rs. 1.12 Million and net cash inflow
of Rs. 1.40 Million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. This financial information is unaudited and has been furnished to us by the
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i\}fanagemem and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
e aglounts aI“ld_CllSti:losure included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on such
unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and

(gplananons given to us by the Management, this financial information is not material to the
roup.

gur opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
egulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
our reliance on the financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Group,
including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as
on 315 March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of
the Group company incorporated in India is disqualified as on 315 March, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of
the Parent. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of those companies.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the

" remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provision of section 197 of the Act.
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W.ith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us: _

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2025 which
would impact its consolidated financial position of the group.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent.

iv. (a) The Management of the Parent has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Parent to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Parent (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management of the Parent has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Parent from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub- clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Parent company which is a company incorporated in India has not declared
or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Parent Company has
used accounting software(s) for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
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tempered with and audit trail has been preserved by the Parent Company as per
the statutory requirements for record retention.

% Titth res.pect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO™ “the Order”) issued by the Central
GOVemn:lem in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
expl%.matlons given to us, and based on the audit report under section 143 issued by us, as
provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that CARO is applicable only to
the Parent and not to any other Company included in the consolidated financial statements.
We have not reported any qualification or adverse remark in the CARO report of the Parent

company.

For PHOPHALIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001184C

)

JODHFUR »3}

4
PRAFFUL PHOPHALIA
Place : Jodhpur : Partner
M No. 415877

Date : 8" May, 2025
VOIN NEUISETFRMOU T Z\032-




SYRMA JOHARI MEDTECH LIMITED
(Formerly known as Johari Digital Healthcare Limited)
Regd. Office: G-582 to 584, EPIP, Boranada
Jodhpur (Rajasthan)

ANNEXURE- A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31** MARCH, 2025

Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements of the Group as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the
internal  financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of Syrma Johari
Medtech Limited (Formerly known as Johari
Digital Healthcare Limited) (“Parent”) as of that

date.

Management’s  Responsibility  for  Internal
Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial

Statements based on the internal control with

reference to Consolidated Financial statements
criteria established by the Parent considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Parent
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act,

2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

sponsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls with reference to
tatements of the Parent

Qur re
internal financial

Consolidated Financial S ent—
We conducted our au ‘t_?a\‘h-}

based on our audit.
nee with the Guidance Note on Audit

accorda

i)

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Those Standards
and Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial  Statements and  their  operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risks. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Parent.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference
to JConsolidaled Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

A . .
eparation of financial statements for external

,\tge reliability of financial reporting and the
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ANNEXURE- A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR THE PERIOD END
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Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under the heading of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 0

purposef; in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that the
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of
Management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial

Statements

Because of inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Parent has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements were c_nperating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements established by
the Parent considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For PHOPHALIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
. Firm Registration No. 001184C

.

PRAFFUL PHOPHALIA
Jodhpur Partner
8" May, 2025 M No. 415877




Syrma Joharl Med
ConscNtated Bﬂ;:;hsl:mlted (Formerly known as Jaharl Digital Healthcare Limited) /’——‘
(Al amounts sre | : eet as at 31 March 2025
s are In Million Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)
As at
Particulars Note No. - H‘;S" — 31 March 2024
I |ASSETS
(1) [Non-current assets
(&) Property, plant and equipment 3 207.34 144.44
(b) Right of use assets 4 92.52 71.05
() Capital wark-in-progress 5 67.95 0.00
(d} Intangible assets g 2,99 2.14
(&) Int2ngible asset under development 7 16.20 0.10
(f) Finandal Assets
{i) Other Financial Assets 8 7.30 1.55
(g) Other non-current assets 9 2,93 1.35
(h) Ceferred Tax Assets (net) 10 10.52 12.40
Total non-current assets 407.75 233.03
(2) |Current asscts
(a) Inventeries 11 245.55 162.58
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Current Investments 12 290.19 135.28
(1) Trade Recelvables 13 621.96 700.15
(11} Cash and cash equivalents 14(1) 81,98 108.75
(Iv) Bank Balance other than (lii) Above 14(i1) 3.64 2,58
(v) Other financial assets 15 1.92 9.65
{c) Current tax assets (net) 16 3.90 -
{a) Other current assets 17 68.43 8.76
Total current assets 1,317.78 1,127.75
Total Assets 1‘725.53 1,360.78
11 |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) |Equity
(a) Equity share capltal 18 33,73 34.77
(b) Other equity 19 1,274,66 1,106.27
Cquity attributable to owners of the Company 1,308.38 1,141.04
{c) Non Contralling Interest (net) - *:
Total Equity 1,308,38 1,141.09
(2) [Linbllitles
Non Current Liabllities
(a) Financlal Liabliities
(1) Borrowings 20 80.00 -
(1) Lease Liabilities 18.40 :
({b) Provisions 21 17.23 15,38
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) - .
Total non=current llabllitles 115.63 15.28
(3)|Current Liablilities
(a) Financlal Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 22 19.66 48,27
(i) Lease Llabilities 4,33 -
(illj Trade payables 23
- Dues of micro and small enterprises 7.65 6.85
- Dues of other than micro and small enterprises 116.41 121.76
{Iv) Other financial liabilities 24 44,15 0.08
(b) Short term provisions 25 5.40 5.46
(¢) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 26 0.23 11.07
(d) Other current liabilities 27 103.68 10.88
Total current liabllities 301.51 204.35
Total liabllitles 417.14 219.74
Total equity and liabilitles 1,725.53 1,360.78
Gee accompanying notes forming parts to the consolidated
financial statements (1-51}
In terms of our reoort attached
For Phophalla & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directore of
Chartered Accountants Syrma Joharl Medtech Limited ”
Firm Reglsiyation No. 001184C CIN U45201RJ1995PLCO09997
. re
S, Joharl o
: Executive Cnalrman
Prafful Phophalia Ol NG DIN - 00381160
Partner _/_ ‘ Place: Miaml, FL Place: Delhi
M.No, - 415877 JODHPUR \ ) Date: B May 2023‘5, Date: B May 2025
| whaa tzmrae
Suhas S. Tamras
Chief Executive Ofticer
Place: Jodhpur Place: Jodhpur
|pate: 8 May 2025 . Date: 8 May 2025
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Syrma Joharl Medte
ch Limited (F
Consoclidated Statement of p (Formerly known as Joharl Digital Healthcare Limited)

rofi
(Al amounts are in Million Indla tand Loss for the period ended 31 March 2025
_

n Rupees unless otherwise stated)
ded
Particulars ded | For the year en
Note No. | For the year en 024
O5i March 2025 | 31 Mareh 25—
I |Revenue
Revenue from operations 35 1,077.37 1-4:;";’2
et gain an Foreign Currency Fluctuations 13.91 97
Other Income 31.30 L
29 ’
[ W
Total income _—-————lm 1,455.73
II |Expenses
Cost of materlals consumed 20 267.21 572.60
Change in Inventory of finished d 34,33
nrognESs goeds and work In ey 13.66
Purchase of Stock In Trade 31 0.51 1.47
Employece benefits expense 33 257.32 195.53
Finance Cost 34 7.16 3‘13
Depreclation and amortization expense 35 26.32 15‘5
Other expenses 16 147.70 159.80
Total Expenses 719.88 982.44
111 |Proflt before Tax 402.70 473.29
IV |Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 46 ; 102.29 125.31
(b) Short/excess provision of tax In respect of earlier years (1.42) 3;2
(c) Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 46 1.90 (5.97)
Total tax expense 102.78 122.47
v |Profit after tax (III-1IV) 299.92 350.82
V1 |Other comprehensive Income/(loss)
Items that will be reclassified to stat t of profit and loss
Exchange Rate Difference on translation of financlal statement of forelgn operalions (0.40) (0.22)
Income Tax relating to above item * =
Items that will not ba raclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remecosurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan (0.09) (0.13)
Income tax relating to above 0.02 0.03
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (0.46) (0.32)
Total Comprehensive Incoma 299.46 350.50
Profit for the year attributable to:
shareholders of the Company 299.92 350.82
Non- Controlling Interests . 5
Other Comprehensive Income loss for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (0.46) (0.32)
Non- Controlling Interests a .
Total Comprehensive Income loss for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 299.46 350.50
Non- Controlling Interests . A
VII [Earnings per equity chare (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 45
- Basic (in Rs) 86.12 100.81
- Diluted (in Rs) ; 86.12 100.81

See accompanylng notes forming parts to the consolidated
financial statements (1-51)

In terms of our report attached
Far Phophalia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglgtration No. 001184C

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Joharl Medtech Limited
CIN U45201R11995PLC009997,

'

(@

JODHPUR

Sutae tamrad

Suhas 5. Tamras
Chief Executive Qllicer

e Joharl
l Executlve Chalrman
DIN - 00381160

e

prafful Phophalla
Partner

M.Nag. - 415877

Place: Miami, FL Place: Delhl Place: Jodhpur

Place: Jodhpur
Date: 8 May 2025 Date: 8 May 2025 Date: 8 May 2025

Date: 8 May 2025




Syrma Johari M
Consolidated Cash
(Al amounts are in M

p;: Limitad (Farmerly known os Joharl Digital Heslthesre Limited)
4 W Statemant for the year ended 31 March 2025
illion Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
For tha year anded | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for; 402.70 47323
Deprediation and Amortisation Expense 26.32 15.57
tiet (gain)/ loss on account of sale of current Investment 1,80 -‘6I:{Jl
Allewance far ECL : 5 a: ‘D.ls
Fair Value Change in Current Investment (18 17 {4‘.32}
Finance cosls :;.16 3.13
Interest inceme on financial asset measured at amortised cost (0.50) (2.76}
Unreaiised Exchange (Gain)/Loss- net (1.42) (7.76)
Employees Stock Comp i 1.96 =
Share based expense to Non Execullve Director 0.93 3
Het (gamn)/ loss on dispesal of Right to Use of Asset - (1.92)
Het (gain)/ lass on dispesal of property, plant and equipment (2.79) (4,213
Operating profit before Working Capital changes 420.04 454.85
Adjustmaents for changes in Opernting Assets
{Increase)fDecrense in trade receivabics 735 (363.87}
(Increase)/Decrense in Inventaries (82,97) 115.55
(Increase}/Dacrense In ather financlal assets (current) 7.73 {9.10)
{Increase)/Decrease |n other nan current financial assets (2.23) 0.23
(Increase)fUecrease In other current assets (59.60) 18,64
{Increase)/Dercrease In other non current assets (0.47) .61
Increase/{Decrease) In trade payables (3.68) (16.14)
Increase/{Dscrease) In other financial liabilitles 0,00 (0.36)
Incresse/(Cecrease) in other labllities 92,70 (24.43)
Incropso/{Dacrease) 0 provisans 1.71 2.15
Cash generated fram/ (use in) operations 26,26 (166,48)
Income taxes rebund/{pad]-net (115.61} (112,13
Net cash fiow from/ (use In) operating activities [A) 330,69 186.24
Cash Nows from Investing activities
{11076} (43.83)

Capital expenditure on Tangible Assets & Right of Use Assols
(inzhictina caital advances net of Capital Crediters)
(18.51} (1.23)

Capital expanditure on Intanait:le assets
Frocoeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment & ROU 5,47 39.35
Proceeds from sale off (Invasiment in) Current Investment- el {134.98) (74.99)
mazurity off (Investment In} Bank Duposits (4.78) 103.24
Interest recenved on depasits 0.50 2,76
Het Cash frem/ (use in) investing activities (B) {263.45) 25.30
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment/ Avallment of Leng Tem: borrowirngs 82,62 {0.66)
Repzyment! Avallment of Sharl Tarm borrowlngs (31,24} 44,62
Furchase of Shares from secoadary market by Joharl Cmployee wellnre Trust (13%.00) -
Fayment of Lease Liability [4.36) =
Dividends Pad - (250.35)
Finance Cost [3.90) (3.13)
Net cash from/ (use in) financing uctlvitics (€} (93.87) (209.52)
Net Increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+84C) (26.63) 2.02
cash and czsh equivalents &t the beginning of year 108.75 106.63
Effects of exchange cifferences on reinstatement of foreign currancy Cash and Cash (0.14) 0.04
Eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year B1.08 108.75
Reconciiation of cash and cach equivalonts ag per the cash fiow statemeant
Cash and cash equivelents as per ohove comprise of the fallowing:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[Cash and cash equivalents (note 14(1)) 81.98 108.75
galancas at the end of the year 81.98 108.75
See atcomo notes forming gart of the lidated Fnanciol 5 1-51

Tn terms of our report attached Far and on behalf of tha Board of Diractors of
Syrma Johari Madtach Limitad

For Phophalia & Co.
Charlered Awcnuntants CINU45201RI1995PLLO0S997

Flrm Reglgtration No. 001184C
. -

+ Juharl
| Executive Chanman
2IN - 00381160
Placat Miaml, I

praftsl Phephalia
Dinta: A May 2025

FPartnar
M.No, - 415877

Sukae taimrae

Suhas 5 Tamras
Cluel Executive Officur

Place: Jodhpur = Place: Jodhpur
Date: B May 2025 Date: # May 2025
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G S A & Associates LLP

/‘ Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Syrma SGS Electronics Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Syrma SGS Electronics Private
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit/(loss), total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed, we
conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including

the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of ass
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Audi
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always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account. ‘

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

e) On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which
there were no material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 37(ix)(a), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 37(ix)(b), except for loans obtained
for the purpose of onward lending, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v.  Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the
year nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting
requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit an:
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.

]
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4
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vi. “Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with.”

h) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has been paid
to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.

Y

Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 077891
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYX6879
Place: New Delhi

Date: 12 May 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Syrma SGS Electronics Private Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER?”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION
143(11) OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i)  Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a)  The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

intangible assets.

b)  The property, plant and equipment were physically verified, during the year by
the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which,
in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all such items at reasonable

intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties
where the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in

favour of the
lessee). Hence, reporting requirement of Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not

applicable.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules

made thereunder.

ii) In respect of clause 3(ii), we state that: -

a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verifications:
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the manz}gement is appropriate; Discrepancies noticed were less than 10% for each
class of inventory.

b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees in aggregate from banks during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company, Hence company
is not required to submit any quarterly returns or statements with banks and financial

institutions.

iii) In respect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: -

a) During the year the company has not provided loans or provided advances in the
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

b) In our opinion, terms and conditions of the grant of loans are prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, the Company has neither provided
any guarantee to any entity nor made any investment during the year.

¢) The company has not given any loans and advances in the nature of loans.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185
of the Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 (1)
of the Act, accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not

apply to the Company.

V) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Orderat

applicable to the Company. S
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vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books
and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, and other
material statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and
Services Tax, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as of 31 March
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information

and explanation given to us, there were no disputed demand for Income Tax, Sales

Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods

and Services Tax which have not been deposited with relevant authorities as on

March 31, 2025.

unrecorded income that have been

viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously
ents under the

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessm
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -

a)  The company hasn’t defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the

payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government

authority.

inion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

c¢) Inourop
y way of term loans during the year

company has utilized the money obtained b
for the purposes for which they were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
1 an overall examination of the financial statements of the

performed by us, and 0
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for

long-term purposes by the company.

e) Since the company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates,
the provisions of the clause 3 (ix) (e and ) w.r.t. loans taken by the Compan

meet the obligation of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint venture or raised-fo:
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on tllle pledge of securities of subsidiaries, associates, or joint venture, are not
applicable during the year.

x)  With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

a)  The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi)  With respect to clause 3(xi), we state that: -

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto

the date of this report.

¢) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints

received by the company during the year”

xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of

the Order is not applicable.

xiii) The Company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit
Committee as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further,
the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, with
respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the

applicable Indian accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the explanation furnished to us, Internal Audit of the
Company is not mandatory in accordance with the Section 138 of the Act due to
non-meeting the threshold minimum limit of the turnover and borrowings accepted
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)(a and b) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

Xiv)
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies

Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xv)

xvi)  With respect to Clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b)  The Company is not into business of Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance

activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

¢)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the order are not applicable.

ven to us, the Company has incurred

xvii) According to information and explanations gi
during the financial year covered by

cash losses amounting to Rs. 36.48 in Millions
our audit.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,

Xviii)
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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xx) Si.ncc, the Company is not meeting threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Act
with respect from Corporate Social’s Responsibility requirements of Clause 3(xx)(a)
and (b) of the Order are not applicable on the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 007891

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYX6879

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

/ (Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements‘ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONT ROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Syrma SGS
Electronics Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
anies Act, 2013.

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Comp

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with

reference to Standalone financial statements. ~£50CI]
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of \the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING
ver financial reporting,

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls o

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

s

Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 077891
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYX6879
Place: New Delhi

Date: 12% May 2025
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For GSA & Associates LLP
Firm Reagistration No.- 000257N/N500339
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Partner ; )
Membership No.:077891 \9&, /-:},'-"
Place : New Delhi NP

Date :12 May 2025

Syrma SGS Electronics Pvt Ltd
CIN: U26109HR2023PTC109688
‘ﬁ:ll.m Sheet as at 31 March 2025
amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated
Particulars — — Note As at As at
__MILZQZL_—_&LMILZQZL
A |Assets e
I |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and eauipment 3 143.45 66.99
(b) Capital work-in-proaress 39 5 77.94
(c) Right-of-use assets 4 95.24 124.55
(d) Other intanaible assets 5 2.96 0.02
(i) Other financial assets 7 12.54 11.56
(e) Income tax asset (net) 8 2.48 0.58
(f) Deferred tax asset (net) 354 11.88 s
Total non-current assets 268.55 281.64
II |Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 - 1.42
(b) Financial assets
(ii) Trade receivables 10 42,12 0.21
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents 11 0.61 0.37
(v) Other financial assets 12 54.17 19.00
(c) Other current assets 13 23.65 20.92
Total current assets 1 41.92
Total assets 323.56
B |Equity and liabilities
I |Equity
(a) Eauity share capital 14 0.10 0.10
{b) Other equity 15 (67.95) (0.79)
Total equity (67.85) (0.69)
II |Liabilities
1 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinas 16 316.51 =
(il) Lease liabilities 33 76.91 100.31
(b) Provisions 17 0.41 0.75
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 0.81
Total non-current liabilities 393.83 101.86
2 |Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinas 18 - 185.39
(i) Lease liabilities 33 22.68 22.14
(iii) Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 19 3.47 1.64
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises| 19 35.89 12.28
(b) Other current liabilities 20 1.05 0.86
(c) Provisions 21 0.03 0.08
Total current liabilities 63.12 222.39
Total liabilities 456.95 324.25
tal i liabil 389.09 | = 323.56 |
Material accounting policies 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma SGS Electronics Ltd
:U26109HR2023PT

Director Director

DIN: 10404256 DIN:03576293
Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date :12 May 2025

Manmohan Meh 3 Shambhu Choudhary

Date: 12 May 25




Syrma SGS Electronics Pvt Ltd
CIN: U26109HR2023PTC109688

(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2025

For the period

The accompaning notes are forming part of Financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP
Firm Reqistration No.- 000257N/N500339
Chartered Accountants

Anshu Gupta \
Partner
Membership No.:077891
Place : New Delhi

[Date :12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Syrma SGS Electronics Pvt Ltd
CIN:U26109HR2023PT

Aou—

Manmohan Mehra
Director

DIN: 10404256
Place: Noida

Date :12 May 2025

Note ed
Particulars No |ended 31 Mar 2025 31‘:::::2024
1 [Revenue from operations 22 41.08 0.18
2 |Other income 23 21.41 0.0
3 [Total income (1+2) 62.49 0.18 |
4 |Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 24 37.57 0.01
(b) Changes in inventories of finished qoods and work-in-progress 25 0.00 -
(c) Employee benefits expense 26 16.18 0.03
(d) Finance costs 27 25.86 0.03
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 37.16 0.04
() Other expenses 28 18.87 0.06
Total expenses 135.64 0.16 |
5 |Profit before tax (Excluding exceptional item)(3 - 4) (73.15) 0.02
6 |Exceptional items 1.38 =
7 |Profit before Tax(5-6) (74.54) 0.02
8 |Tax expense
- Deferred tax (net) 35.4 (12.68) 0.81
Total tax expense (12.68) 0.81
9 |Profit for the period/year (5 - 6) (61.85) (0.79)
11 |Total comprehensive income for the period/year (7 + 8) (61.85) (0.79)]
12 |Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each
- Basic and Diluted (In Rs.) 34 (6,185.48) (78.52)
0
Material accounting policies 2

Shambhu Choudhary
Director
DIN:03576293

Place: Noida

Date: 12 May 25 .
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Svrma SGS Electronics Pvt Ltd
CIN: U26109HR2023PTC109688
;:;hment for cash f:mru-nm-lod endina 31 Mar 2025
(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stat
Particulars 0 ed) Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 2025 |
Il’;oﬁmt be?oorrtamx operatina activities (73.15) 0.02
Adiustments for:
Deopreciation and amortisation expense 37.16 0.04
Finance costs 25.86 0.03
Interest income (1.94) -
Operatina profit before workina capital changes (12.07) 0.09
Adiustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 1.42 (1.42)
Trade receivables (41.92) (0.21)
Other financial assets (36.15) (30.56)
Other assets (2.73) (20.92)
Adiustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade pavables 25.44 13.92
Other liabilities 0.19 0.86
Provisions (0.39) 0.
Cash used in operations (66.21) (37.41)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (1.90) _(0.58)f
Net cash flow used in operating activities (68.11) (37.99)
IL. Cash flow from investina activities
Capital exp towards tangible assets (inc capital advances, net of capital payables) (105.81) (67.14)
Cavital expenditure towards intanaible assets (includina capital advances) 77.94 (77.94)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 21.16 0.14
Net cash used in investina activities (6.71) (144.94)
I1I1. Cash flow from financina activities
Proceeds from short term/lona term borrowinas (net) 131.12 185.39
Pavment of lease liabilities (41.68) (217
Finance costs paid (16.32) (0.02)
Interest received on deposits 1.94 =
Net cash flow from financina activities | 7506 ] @ 183.30
IV. Decrease in cash and cash eauivalents (I + II + III) 0.24 0.37
V. Cash and cash eauivalents at the beainnina of the vear 0.37 >
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 0.61 0.37
VII. Cash and cash eauivalents comoprise of:
- In current accounts 0.61 0.37
i el1 0.61 0.37
Notes to cash flow statement —
(i) The above cash flow statemnet has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 Statement of cash
flows
(ii} Figires in bracet represent Cash Outflow
(iii) Reconciliation of chanae in liabilities arisina from financaina activities is aiven in note 16
The accompanvina notes are formina part of financial statements
|For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Reaistratiop No.- 000257N/N500339 Svrma SGS El C y Ltd-
N\ 2 é‘j
% 4 &
| Manmohan Meh ‘f”d, Shambhu Choudharv
=/ Director 19 Director
DIN: 10404256 DIN:03576293
Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date :12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 25




Syrma SGS Electronics Pvt Ltd

CIN: cuancw-._’nnuu-ﬂn_.sa
Statement of Chanages in Equity for

the vear 31st
(All amounts are in million Indian ru ended Mar 2025

DEes unless otherwise stated)
A, Equity share capital
Particulars No. of shares Amount
(In full
JI-_-._.o- as at 3 March 2023 umher) -
Chanaes In equity share capital during the vear 10,000 1,00,000.00
(Balance as at 31 March 2024 10,000 | 1,00,000.00 |
Balance as on 1 April 2024 10.000 1.00,000.00
Chanaes In eaulty share capital during the yvear = =
Balance as at 31 March 2025 _10,000 [ 1,00,000.00 |
1? Other equity
—Components
Particulars Capital reserve Capital Surplus in Total
redemption Statement of
reserve Profit and Loss
Balance as at 3 March 2023 -
Profit for the vear (0.79) (0.79
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - (0.79) _(0.79))
Profit for the vear (61.85) (61.85
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - - (62.64) (62.64)]
The accompanying notes are forming part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

_101 GSA & Assoclates LLP
Firm Reqistration No.- 000257N/N500339

Chartered Accountants A0
: \ H _,l.. e m |
Anshu Gupta ol .
Partner Ry A
Membership No.:077891 ,/J/ruil.\ .

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Shambhu nsoisuw

Svrma SGS E|

Director
DIN: 10404256
Place: Noida

e e b e g B

Date : 12 May 2025

Director
DIN:03576293
Place: Noida
Date: 12 May 25
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Syrma SGS Technology & Engineering Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Syrma SGS Technology &
Engineering Services Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit/(loss), total comprehensive income/(loss), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

_________________________________ HR \

\ \
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In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed, we
conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR F INANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in
Branches at Delhi (Patpar Ganj) Akhnoor {Jammu}
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures rnade by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

* BEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial staternents may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. =iy

\
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

€) On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
20235, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

.. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

e
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ii.  The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which
there were no material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 16(vi)(a), no funds {which are
material either individuaily or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including -foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 16(vi)b), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(1) and (if) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v.  Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the
year nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting
requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are rot applicable on the Company.

vi.  “Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which C?j
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
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operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with.”

h) Asrequired by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has been paid
to any director in the Company during the year,

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.

Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 891007

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYT5868

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 May 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Syrma SGS Technology & Engineering Services Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION
143(11) OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i) Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any property, plant and equipment, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(1)(a), 3(3i)(b), 3(i)(c) and 3(i}d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

) No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder,

ii)  Inrespect of clause 3(ii), we state that; -

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any Inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

i)  Inrespect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: - During the year the company has not provided
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity therefore para 3(iii)(a), (b), (c) not applicable,

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185
of the Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 )]
of the Act, accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not
apply to the Company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
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Chartered Accountant

sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books
and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a)  The Company has NIL statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, with the appropriate authorities Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vii)(a) and 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

ix) With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that; -
The company has not any loans or other borrowing Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ix)(a), 3(1x)(b), 3(ix){c), 3(ix)(d), 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

X) With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

X1} With respect to clause 3(xi}), we state that: -

a} No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year. :

b} No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred
any cash losses amounting to Rs.0.09 in millions during the financial year covered
by our audit,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by board of directors and
management planning examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, the
Company is in the process of establish its business. Therefore, we are unable to
comment upon whether any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Since, the Company is not meeting threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Act
with respect to Corporate Social’s Responsibility requirements of Clause 3(xx)(a)
and (b) of the Order are not applicable on the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

upta

Place: New Deihi
Date: 12" May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Syrma SGS
Technology & Engineering Services Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemnal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s intemnal financial controls systcm with:.
reference to Standalone financial statements.
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of \the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCJAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm R%&L 000257N/N500339
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(Partner)
Membership No. 077891

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYT5868
Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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Syrma SGS Technology and Engincering Services Limited
CIN: U26109HR2023PLC110135

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at

As at

NoteiNo 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Capital work in progress 4 1.03 0.04
Total non-current assets 1.03 0.04
Current assets
Financial Asset
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 010 010
Other current assets 3 4.12 -
Total current assets 422 0.10
Total Assets 5.25 0.14
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 6 0.10 0.10
{b) Other equity 7 (0.09) -
Total Equity 0.01 0.10
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 8
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterorises and small enterorises - -
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 430 0.04
and small enterprises
Other current ligbilities 9 0.94 -
Total eurrent liabilities 524 0.04
Total equity and liabilities 5.25 0.14
Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Syrma SGS Technology and Engineering Services Limited

Firm Reglsh'atlon No. - 000257/ N500339

\r’UV
Anshu Gupta Jasbir Singh Gujral
Partner N Director
Membership No.: 077891 DIN: 00198825
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025

gl

r Agrawal
Director
DIN; 07815618
Place: Gurugram
Date; 12 May 2025




Syrma SGS Technology and Engimeering Services Limited
CIN: U26109HR2023PLC110135

Statement of Profit and Loss for the yesr ewded 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulzrs Note For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024
No.

1. Revenue from operations

2. Other income 10 4.12
Total Income (1+2) 4.12
3. Expenses

Cost of materials consumed -
Changgs in inventories of finished goods, work- in- -
Progress

Employee benefits expense -
Finance costs =
Depreciation and amortization expense 11 -

Other expenses 12 4.21

Total expenses 4.21

Profit before tax 0.09)

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax <

Profit after tax (A) (0.09)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

(1) Ttems that will not be reclassified swbsequently

to profit or loss

{a) Re-measurement gainf(loss) on defined benefit

obligation .
(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be

|reclassified to profit or loss -

Total othber comprehensive income for the period
(net of tax) (B) =

Total comprebensive income for the period (net of

tax} fA+RY (0.09)

Earning Per Equity Share (EPS) {In Rs.) 14

Basic (8.91)

Diluted

Material Accounting Policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Syrma SGS Technology and Engiweering Services Limited
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339
Anslin Gupta Jashir Simgh Gujral Bijsy ﬁir Agrawal
Partner et M Director

Membership No.; 077891 DIN: 00198825 D]N_ 078 15618

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma $GS Tecbnolegy and Engineering Services Limited
CIN: U26109HR2023PLC110135

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year emded
31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for .

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Operating cash fllow before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments.

(Increase) / decrease in other current assets

Decrease in other curvent assets

Increase / {decrease) in trade payables

Increase / {decrease) in other current financial liabilities
Increase in other current liabilities

Cash genersted from operafions

Income tax paid (net}

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash Nlow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible asseis
Net eash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow lrom financing activivies
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Net ¢ash gemerated from financisg activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the end of the peried

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
- Balances with banks
- On ¢urrent accounts
‘Total eash and ¢ash equivalents

Notes:

{0.09) -
{0.09) =
4.12) .
426 0.04
0.94
0.99 0.04
0.99 0.04
0.9%) {0.04)
(0.99) (0.04)
- 0.10
- 0.10
0.00 0.10
0.10 -
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2. The figure in bracket denotes cash outflows.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

|
- ym/ I
-’/.’_/—”“

Anshu Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 077891
Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

Jasbir Singh Gujral
Director

DIN: 00198825
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma SGS Technology and Engineering Services Limited

oA
%-3%3245“

BijayNKumar Agrawal
Director

DIN: 07815618

Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Syrma SGS Design &
Manufacturing Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit/(loss), total comprehensive income/(loss), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar New Delhvilﬂﬂl? —-_"'. /
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed, we
conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maiters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of s nr q‘i
y&; \
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit eyidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements,

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi-110017
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

e} On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 3 I,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

report in “Annexure B, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy

2 P
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and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position,

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which
there were no material foreseeable losses.

fii.  The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi)(a), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi)(b), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v.  Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the
year nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting
requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.

vi.  “Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with.”

h) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has been paid

to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.

W

Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 891007

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYR7214

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 May 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION
143(11) OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i)  Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any property, plant and equipment, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(1)(a), 3(i)Db), 3(i)c) and 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

¢) No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder,

if)  Inrespect of clause 3(ii), we state that: -

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any Inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.,

iii) Inrespect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: - During the year the company has not provided
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity therefore para 3(iii)(a), (b), {c) not applicable.

iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185
of the Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 (D
of the Act, accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not
apply to the Company.

V) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be _@_@J?_giits
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the p;_c_)fv_i'sfigiié:’bf.

9 o )3)
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sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books
and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a)  The Company has NIL statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, with the appropriate authorities Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vii)(a) and 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

ix) With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -
The company has not any loans or other borrowing Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ix)(a), 3(ix)(b), 3(ix)(c), 3(ix)(d), 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

x) With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi) With respect to clause 3(xi), we state that; -

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has bcerf_hl\\
noticed or reported during the year. () . \é’_ \ ))
b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has ﬁeen — f.fi;{:? ;
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filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

¢) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year”

xii}  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

xiii}  The Company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit
Committee as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further,
the Company has not any transaction with related party . Accordingly, paragraph
3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv)  In our opinion and according to the explanation furnished to us, Internal Audit of the
Company is not mandatory in accordance with the Section 138 of the Act due to
non-meeting the threshold minimum limit of the turnover and borrowings accepted
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)(a and b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi)  With respect to Clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b)  The Company is not into business of Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the order are not applicable.

Xvii) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred
any cash losses amounting to Rs.0.09 in Millions during the financial year coye: g{dl\\
by our audit. PO AN
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xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us by Board of Directors and
management planning examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, the
Company is in the process of establish its business. Therefore, we are unable to
comment upon whether any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx)  Since, the Company is not meeting threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Act
w.r.t. Corporate Social’s Responsibility requirements of Clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of
the Order are not applicable on the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Rc&]jo. 000257TN/N500339

Anshu Gupta
(Partner) s>
Membership No. 007891 S
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYR7214

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE I OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Syrma SGS
Design and Manufacturing Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our aundit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system-with
reference to Standalone financial statements. Lo S

(@ /(‘ <)
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of ‘the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intermal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Anshu Gupta e /

(Partner) i! { ...'
Membership No. 077891 ¥\ / iof
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYR7214

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited
CIN: U26109HR2023PTC110154

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asat As at

NoellNe 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Assets

Non-current sssety
Capital work in progress
Total non-current assets - 0.04

Current assets
Financial Asset
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.10 0.10
Total current assets 0.1¢ 0.10

Total Assets 0,18 0.14

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

(a} Equity share capital 0.10 0.10
(b} Other equity 6 0.09) -
Total Equity 0.01 0.10

o

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i} Trade payables 7

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterorises and small enterorises - -
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 0.09 0.04
small enterprises
Total current liabilities 0.09 0.04

Total equity and liabilities 0.1¢ 0.14

Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date atiached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

»

Anshu Gupta Maomohkan Mechra ambhu Choudbary
Pariner Director Director

Membership No.: 077891 DIN: 10404236 DIN: 03576293

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

Date: 12 May 2025

Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited

CIN: U26109HR2023PTC110154

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended 31 March For the year ended 31 March
No. 2025 2024

1. Revenue from operations - -
2. Other income . -

Total Income (1+2) - -

3. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- in- - -
| progress

Employee benefits expense - .
Finance costs - -
Depreciation and amortization expense -
Other expenses 9 0.09 -

o0

Total expenses 0.09 -

Profit before tax {0.09) “

Tax expense
Current tax * =
Deferred tax - =

Profit after tax (A) (0.09) -

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

|(1) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

(a) Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit

abligation - -
(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss - -

Total other comprehensive income for the period
(net of tax) (B) - =

Total comprehensive income for the period (net of
tax) {A+RBY (0.09) &

Earning Per Equity Share (EPS) {In Rs.) 11
Basic (9.16) -
Diluted

Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
|Chartered Accountants Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited

Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339 ’\‘A‘/

Anshu Gupta Manmohan Mehra hambhu Choudhary
Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 077891 DIN: 10404256 DIN: 03576293

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma SGS Design and Manufactvring Private Limited
CIN: U26109HRZ023PTC110154

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating sctivities
Profit before tax (0.09) -
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense - -
Operating cash flow before working capifal changes {0.09) -
Working capital adjustments:
Increase f (decrease) in trade payables 0.05 0.04
Cash generated from operations (0.04) 0.04
Income tax paid (net) - -
Net cash generated from operating activitles (A) (0.04) 0.04
B. Cash flow from favesting activities
Purchase/sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0.04 (0.04)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 0.04 (0.04)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 0.10
Net cash generated from financing activities {C) - 0.10
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.00) 010
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 0.§0 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period .10 0.10
Cash and cash equivslents at the end of the period
- Batances with banks

- On current accounts 0.10 0.10

Total cash amnd cash equivalents 0.10 0.10

Notes:

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2. The figure in bracket denotes cash outflows.

For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Anshu Gupta
Pariner

Membership No.: 077891

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma SGS Design and Manufacturing Private Limited

r\m/gewd

Manmohkan Mchra
Director

DIN: 10404256
Place; Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

Shambhu Choudhary
Director

DIN: 03576293

Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Syrma Semicon Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Syrma Semicon Private Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit/(loss), total comprehensive income/(loss), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. K/,j'.'-/-i.'.f —J&\
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In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed, we
conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements. s SR
B\ /
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, futare events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. ZSOCI
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

g

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s intemal financial control over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters te be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position. e

- s
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ii. The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which
there were no material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi)(a), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi)(b), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v.  Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the
year nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting
requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.

vi  “Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which..
has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has—
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operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with.”

h) As required by section 197(1 6) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has been paid
to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.

AnSh“ Gupta - ’ :-‘:.2_..,.
(Partner) b il
Membership No. 891007

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYN5437

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Syrma Semicon Private Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION
143(11) OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i)  Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any property, plant and equipment, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(a), 3(i)b), 3()c) and 3()(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

e) No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

ii)  Inrespect of clause 3(ii), we state that: -

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any Inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii) In respect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: - During the year the company has not provided
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity therefore para 3(iii)(a), {b), (c) not applicable.

iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185
of the Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 (1)
of the Act, accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not
apply to the Company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the prp\fi'sibns'-éf"_,
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sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company,

vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vii} According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books
and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

4)  The Company has NIL statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Goods and Services Tax, and other material Statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, with the appropriate authorities Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vii)(a) and 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

viii)  There were no transactions relating fo previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

ix) With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that; -
The company has not any loans or other borrowing Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ix)(a), 3(ix)(b), 3(@ix)e), 3(ix)(d), 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

X) With respect to Clause 3(x); we state that: -

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order js not applicable,

b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Xi) With respect to clause 3(xi), we state that: -
a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has beense-
noticed or reported during the year. o

b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act hal '-l__')‘gg_:n
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filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

¢} Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year”

xii) ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

xiii) The Company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit
Committee as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further,
the Company has not any transaction with related party . Accordingly, paragraph
3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv)  In our opinion and according to the explanation furnished to us, Internal Audit of the
Company is not mandatory in accordance with the Section 138 of the Act due to
non-meeting the threshold minimum limit of the turnover and borrowings accepted
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)(a and b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi)  With respect to Clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not into business of Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the order are not applicable.

xvil)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred
any cash losses amounting to Rs.0.09 in millions during the financial year covered
by our audit. AESOCIA

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi- 110{)1’7
Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in -
Branches at Delhi {Patpar Ganj} Akhnoor (Jammu)
¢ LLP registration no AAS-8863



GSA& Associates LLp

Chartered Accountants

Mmanagement planning examination of the evidence Supporting the assumptions, the
Company is in the process of establish its business, Therefore, we are unable to
comment upon whether any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Xx)  Since, the Company is not meeting threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Act
w.r.t. Corporate Social’s Responsibility requirements of Clanuge 3(xx}(a) and (b) of
the Order are not applicable on the Company,

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

Anshu Gupta
(Partner)

Membership No. 007891

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYNS437

Place: New Delhj
Date: 12 May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Syrma Semicon
Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to Standalone financial statements.

(2 ‘%Q' I
Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi—ll('}\dg_-;? &
Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in A

Branches at Delhi (Patpar Ganj) Akhnoor (fammu)
*  LLPregistration no AAS-8863




G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of ‘the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm R}%\)‘N&_ 000257N/N500339

Ausﬁ._ supta 3

(Partner)
Membership No. 077891 : Jorf
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYNS437 AVZ So=)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 May 2025
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Syrma Semicon Private Limited

CIN: U26104HR2023PTC116757

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Note No

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Assets

Non-current assets

Capital work in progress 3
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Financial Asset

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4
Total current assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

() Equity share capital

(b) Other equity 6
Total Equity

wh

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilitics

(i) Trade payables 7
-Total ouistanding dues of micro enterorises and small enternrises

-Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabtlities

Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral pant of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date aitached
For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

0.04

0.10

0.04

0.10

0.16

0.10

0.10

0.14

0.10
(0.09)

0.10

0.01

0.09

0.04

0.09

0.04

0.10

0.14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Semicon Private Limited

Anshu Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 077891

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025
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Manmohan Mehra
Director

DIN: 10404256
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

"§v, km,
Sandeep Kimar

Director
DIN: 10404257

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma Semicon Private Limited

CIN: U26104HR2023PTC116757

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2025 March 2024

Particulars Note

No

1. Revenue from operations - -
2. Other income . )

Total Income (1+2) - -

3. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- in- - -
progress

Employee benefits expense - -
Finance costs 4 =
Depreciation and amortization expense g
Other expenses 9 0.09 -

=]

Total expenses 0.09 -

Profit before tax (0.0%)

Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -

Profit after tax (A) (0.09) -

Other comprehensive income/{loss)

(I) Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

(a) Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit

obligation - -
(b} Income tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss - -

Total other comprehensive income for the period
(net of tax) (B) = =

Total comprehensive income for the period (net of
tax) (A+B) (0.09) -

Earning Per Equity Share (EPS) {In Rs.) 11
Basic o.11) -
Diluted

Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Syrma Semicon Private Limited
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

N AT

Anshu Gupta \2\ ) Manmohan Mehra amep umar
Partner oA Director Director
Membership No.: 077891 o acct DIN: 10404256 DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma Semicon Private Limited

CIN: U26104HR2023PTC116757

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million Indian nipees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ¢ended
31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Operating cash flow before working capital chapnges
Working capital adjustients:

Increase / {decrease) in trade payables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (net}

Net cash gewerated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
PurchasefSale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Met cash used im investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow trom linancing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Nei cash generated from finamcing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivatents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
- Balances with banks
- gn ¢current accounts
Total cash and cash equivalests

Notes:

(0.09)
{0.09) :
0.0% 0.04
(0.04) 0.04
0.04) 0.04
0.04 (0.04)
0.04 (0.04)
: 0.10
- 0.10
- 0.10
0.10 -
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2. The figure in bracket denotes cash outfiows.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Rt.gt\r:llmu No. - 000257N/ N500339

RN

Anshu Gupts

Pariner

Membership No.: 077891
Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025
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|

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
Syrma Semicon Private Limited

“\u/m

Manmohan Mebra
Director

DIN: 10404256
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

Sandeep Kymar
Director

DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12-hay 2025
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Syrma Strategic Electronics Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Syrma Strategic Electronics
Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit/(loss), total comprehensive income/(loss), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 3

6
G\

= S

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi-110017

Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in
Branches at Delhi {(Patpar Ganj) Akhnoor {Jammu)
®  LLP registration no AAS-8863

- -

SAalpN

g L §
.\

\

)

- &)
Fa



G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.,

In connection with our audit report of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed, we
conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-gection 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant

rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi-110017 &5

Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in
Branches at Delhi (Patpar Ganj) Akhnoor {Jammu}
*  LLP registration no AAS-8863
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our aundit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a staterment on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.,

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

¢) On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii.  The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which
there were no material foreseeable losses,

iii.  The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi)(2), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi)(b), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi-11601%-
Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in
Branches at Delhi (Patpar Ganj) Akhnoor (Jammu}
*  LLP registration no AAS-8863



G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (2) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement,

v.  Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the
year mor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting
requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.

vi.  “Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with.”

h) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has been paid
to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.

kk‘“/'/ "

Anshu Gupta

(Partner)

Membership No. 891007
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYV5980

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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Tele 7862099205-206., 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.net.in
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Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Syrma Strategic Electronics Private Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION
143(11) OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i} Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any property, plant and equipment, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(a), 3(i}b), 3(i)}(c) and 3(i}d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

€) No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

ii) Inrespect of clause 3(ii), we state that: -

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any Inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)}b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii)  Inrespect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: - During the year the company has not provided
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity therefore para 3(iii)(a), (b), (c) not applicable,

iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185
of the Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 (1)
of the Act, accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not
apply to the Company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the proyﬁﬁibh‘sﬁf-ﬁfgi.‘j-_
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G S A & Associates LLP

Charterad Accountants

sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company,

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books
and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a)  The Company has NIL statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, with the appropriate authorities Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vii)(a} and 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

ix)  With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -
The company has not any loans or other borrowing Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ix)(a), 3(ix)(b), 3(ix)(c), 3(ix)(d), 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

X) With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi) With respect to clause 3(xi), we state that; -

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b)  No report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has beer <,

HEZD)
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Chartered Accountants

filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

) Asrepresented tous by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year”

xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

xili)  The Company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit
Committee as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further,
the Company has not any transaction with related party . Accordingly, paragraph
3(xiii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv)  In our opinion and according to the explanation furnished to us, Internal Audit of the
Company is not mandatory in accordance with the Section 138 of the Act due to
non-meeting the threshold minimum limit of the tumover and borrowings accepted
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)(a and b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with it directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi)  With respect to Clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.,

b) The Company is not into business of Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the order are not applicable.

xvii)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred

any cash losses amounting to Rs.0.09 in Millions during the financial year covered
by our audit. * SOCI

|'.::-‘ keIl ‘I
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xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us by Board of Directors and
management planning examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, the
Company is in the process of establish its business. Therefore, we are unable to
comment upon whether any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a peried of one year from the
balance sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx)  Since, the Company is not meeting threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Act
w.r.t. Corporate Social’s Responsibility requirements of Clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of
the Order are not applicable on the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

-~ f/l./" I\-_ ™
Anshu Gupta rf/ .""II )
(Partner) -

Membership No. 007891
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYV5980

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Syrma Strategic
Electronics Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemnal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to Standalone financial statements.
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING '

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of ‘the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intenal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

Anshu Gupta &/
(Partner) %1
Membership No. 077891 2\ ;
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYV5980 N

Place: New Delhi g
Date: 12" May 2025
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Syrma Strategic Electronics Private Limited

CIN: U26101HR2023PTC117218

Balance Sheet as a¢ 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note N As at Asat

ote o 3t March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current agsets
Capital work in progress 3 - 0.04
Total oon-current assets - 0.04
Current assets
Financial Asset
{i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.10 0.10
Total current assets 0.10 0.10
Total Assets 0.10 0.14
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a} Equity share capital 5 0.10 0.10
(b) Other equity 6 (0.09) =
Total Equity 0.01 0.10
Lisbilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 7
-Total outstandine dues of micro enterprises and small enterorises - -
-Total ouistanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 0.09 0.04
small enterprises
Total current liabilities 0.09 0.04
Total equity and liabilities 0,10 0.14

Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg:siratmn No. - 000257N/ N500339

IECHA TR B

Anshu Gupta \5 / )
Partner \

Membership No.: 077891
Place; Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Strategic Electronles Private Limited

Shambhu Choudhnry
Director

DIN: 03576293

Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

Director
DIN: 10404257

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025
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Syrma Strategic Electronics Private Limited

CIN: U26101HR2023PTC117218

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
No.

For the year ended 31 March 2025

For the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Revenue from operations
2. Other income
Total Income (1+2)

3. Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- in-
progress

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other ¢xpenses 9
Total expenses

o

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit after tax (A)

Qther comprebensive income/(loss)

(1) Items that will mot be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

(a) Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit
obligation

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income for the period
{net of tax) (B)

Total comprehensive income for the period (net of
tax) (A+HL

Earning Per Equity Share (EPS) (In Rs.) 11
Basic

Diluted

Material Accounting Policies 2

As per our report of even date attached
For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

Date: 12 May 2025

(0.09) =

(0.09) -

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

(9.14) -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Strategic Electronics Private Limited

| —
Anshu fiuptn Shambhu Choudhary
Partner Director
Membership No.: 077891 ) DIN: 03576293
Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

oty

S e

Director

DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma Strategic Electromics Private Limited

CIN: U26101HR2023PTC117218

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in rillion Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

q Year ended Year ended
G 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operatimg activities
Profit before tax {0.09) -
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense = =
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (0.09) -
Working capital adjustments:
Inerease / {decrease) in trade payables 0.05 0.04
Cash generated from operations (0.04) 0.04
Income tax paid (net) - -
Net cash gemerated from operating activities {(4) {0.04} 0.04
B. Cash flow from [avesting activities
Purchase/sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0.04 {0.04)
Net cash waed im investing activities (B) 0.04 (0.04)
C. Cash flow from financimg activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 0.10
Net cash gemerated from financing activities (C) - 0.10
Net imerease ip cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.00) 0.10
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 0.10 -
Cash and eash equivalents at the ead of the period 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ¢the period
- Balances with banks

- ON current accounts 0.10 0.10

Total cash amd cash equivalents 0.10 0.10

Notes:

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2. The figure in bracket denotes cash outflows.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339.

Anshu Gupia o\ /&)
Membership No.: 077891
Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Strategic Electromics Private Limited

Director

DIN: 03576293
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

_qgﬂ—y / Can fA ¢
Shambha Choudhary—Sindeep Kumfir
Director

DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025
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G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Syrma Mobility Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Syrma Mobility Private Limited
(the “Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025 and its profit/(loss), total comprehensive income/(loss), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA” s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The company’s management and board of directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Board Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Board Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report, <ES0CIR

57 N\
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial staternents, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed, we
conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with govemance.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate
the company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

-~

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and t6-isSié an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lcvcl_,f"pf”as$a=16¢ /
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but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements. S5O0
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section
143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

e) On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion onthe'adequacy

e e SN
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and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii.  The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative
contracts, other than those which have already been provided for which
there were no material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi}a), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in note no. 13(vi}b), no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; e
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C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(1) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v.  Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the
year nor proposed any dividend for the year, hence, reporting
requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.

vi.  “Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with,”

h) Asrequired by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that no remuneration has been paid
to any director in the Company during the year.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. ST

Anshu Gupta iy ey
(Partner)

Membership No. 891007

UDIN : 25077891BMNAYP7637

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12" May 2025
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date of Syrma Mobility Private Limited.

AS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2020 (“THE
ORDER”) ISSUED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION
143(11) OF THE ACT, WE GIVE IN THE ANNEXURE AS FOLLOWS: -

i)  Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any property, plant and equipment, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(a), 3(i)(b), 3(i)}(c) and 3(i)}(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

e) No proceeding has been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

ii)  Inrespect of clause 3(ii), we state that: -

a) In our opinion and according to the information given to us as the company has
not any Inventory, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii) Inrespect of clause 3 (iii) we state that: - During the year the company has not provided
loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity therefore para 3(iii)(a), (b), {c) not applicable.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loan, guarantees and securities covered under section 185
of the Act. The Company has not made any investment as referred in section 186 (1)
of the Act, accordingly other requirements relating to section 186 of the Act do not
apply to the Company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to.us; the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to’be-deposits

as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the prpws’gls ofj :l
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sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books
and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a)  The Company has NIL statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, with the appropriate authorities Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vii)(a) and 3(vii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

ix)  With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -
The company has not any loans or other borrowing Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ix)(a), 3(ix)}(b), 3(ix)(c), 3(ix)(d), 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

X} With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Xi) With respect to clause 3(xi), we state that: -

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been

noticed or reported during the year. P

4 A :'.I/
LY S
fe-

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companieif{pt bﬁs' becn} _- )
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filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

¢) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year”

xil)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

xiii) The Company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit
Committee as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further,
the Company has not any transaction with related party . Accordingly, paragraph
3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv)  Inour opinion and according to the explanation furnished to us, Internal Audit of the
Company is not mandatory in accordance with the Section 138 of the Act due to
non-meeting the threshold minimum limit of the tumover and borrowings accepted
by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)(a and b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi)  With respect to Clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not into business of Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)}(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause

3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the order are not applicable.
xvii) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company hdS lncurred
cash losses amounting to Rs.0.09 in milliens during the financial year cobred by
our audit. \a\ . }
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XX)

G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by Board of Directors and
management planning examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, the
Company is in the process of establish its business, Therefore, we are unable to
comment upon whether any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Since, the Company is not meeting threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Act
w.r.t. Corporate Social’s Responsibility requirements of Clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of
the Order are not applicable on the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered

Firm Reg No. 000257N/N500339

} ’ -':-1.:: \
&\/ Bl comi )
Anshu Gupta &)

(Partner)

Accountants

Membership No. 007891
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYP7637

Place: New Delhi

Date: 12

May 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE {d) OF
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Syrma Mobility
Private Limited as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriafe to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial contrgl_s,.-“system “with
reference to Standalone financial statements. (| \/ V2

\ \

Head Office - 16 DDA Flat, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Mor, Near Malviya Nagar, New Delhi-110017
Tele 7862099205-206,, 41811888 Email admin@gsa.net.in, sa@gsa.netin
Branches at Delhi {Patpar Ganj) Akhnoor (Jammu}
*  LLP registration no AAS-8863



G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of \the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm %@ 000257N/N500339 R
Anshi Gupta TN

(Partner)
Membership No. 077891
UDIN : 25077891BMNAYP7637

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 May 2023
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Syrma Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U26101HR2024PTC117767

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in million Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Material Accounting Policies 2
The notes referred to above fonm an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date aftached

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339
- o P —— -';\_}\
.M -\:\-' /
Anshu Gupta
Partner N A4
Membership No.: 077891 G acc
Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

Note N As at As at
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Assets

Non-current assets

Capital work in progress 3 - 0.04
Total non-current assets - 0.04
Current assets

Financial Asset

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.10 0.10
Total current assets 0.10 0.10
Total Assets 0.10 0.14
Equity and Liabilities

Equity

(a) Equity share capital 5 0.10 0.10
|(b) Other equity 6 (0.09 -
Total Equity 0.01 0.10
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 7

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterorises and small enterorises - -
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 0.09 0.04
and small enterprises

Total current liabilities 0.09 0.04
Total equity and liabilities 0.10 0.14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Mobility Private Limited

Manmohan Mechra

Director Director
DIN: 10404256 DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma Mobility Private Limited
CIN: U26101HR2024PTC117767

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million [ndian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note
no.

For the year ended 31 March 2025

For the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Revenue from operations
2. Other income
Total Income (1+2)

3. Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- in-
Progress

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit after tax (A)

Qther comprehensive income/{loss)

- Items that will not be reclassified subsequentty to
profit or loss

(a) Re-measurement gainf(loss) on defined benefit
obligation

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income for the period
(net of tax) (B)

Total comprehensive income for the period (net of
tax) {A+R1

Earning Per Equity Share (EPS) (In Rs.)
Basic
Diluted

Material Accounting Policies

11

2

(0.09)

(0.09)

(8.95)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

L e/ \

Anshu Gupta |\ B

Partner \, ey
Membership No.: 077891 s/
Place: Gurugram e
Date: 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Syrma Mobility Private Limited

A

Manmohaw Mehra
Director

DIN: 10404256
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025

jﬁiﬁmﬁ I -

Director

DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025




Syrma Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U26101HR2024PTC117767

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in million [ndian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

A. Cash flow [rom operating activitles

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Operating cash flow before worldug capital changes
Working capital adjustments:

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid {net)

Net cash generated from operating activities {A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase/sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from linancing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C})

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash snd cash equivalents at the end of the period

Cash and cash equivalends at the end of the period
- Balances with banks
- 0N ¢utrent accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents

Notes:

(0.09)
(0.09)
0.05 0.04
0.04) 0.04
(0.04) 0.04
0.04 {0.04)
0.04 0.09)
0.10
z 0.10
(0.00) 0.0
0.10 ;
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows

2. The figure in bracket denotes cash outflows

For GSA & Associstes LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000257N/ N500339

Anshu Gupta

Partner

Membership No.; 077891
Place; Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Syrma Mobility Private Limited

e

Manmohan Mehra —5 andeep hﬁpm

Director

DIN: 10404256
Place; Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

Director

DIN: 10404257
Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025
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